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Tsaker Chemical Group Limited, together with its subsidiaries,
is the world’s leading producer of a number of fine chemicals
that function as dye and agricultural chemical intermediates, and
pigment intermediates, and in 2017, the Company entered into
the fields of lithium battery materials and environmental protection
consultancy.

DSD Acid, a dye intermediate, can produce dyes and optical
brightening agents (“OBA”) after being processed. It is widely
used in downstream products, mainly paper, textile, detergents
and cosmetics. The main product of agricultural chemical
intermediates of the Group are ONT and OT. Toluene produces
PNT, ONT and MNT (collectively called “mononitrotoluene”)
simultaneously through chemical processes. PNT is the major
raw material for producing DSD Acid; ONT and OT are mainly
used to produce herbicides. By producing mononitrotoluene, we
successfully secured the upstream raw material supplies for DSD
Acid and stabilized its price, and further expanded our product
portfolio to include agricultural chemical intermediates, so as to
increase our market share. Another major product of the Group,
pigment intermediates, consisting mainly of DMSS and DMAS, are
important raw materials for the production of high-grade pigments,
which are mainly used in products such as printing ink, food
additives, and high-grade paint.

Leveraging its advantages in research and development
technology and rich experience in the fine chemicals industry,
the Group began to invest in the research and development and
manufacturing of iron phosphate, the precursor of new energy
anode materials, in early 2017, and has broadened its products
in the new energy field to include carbon nanotube paste and
the precursor of ternary anode materials. The Group built a
15,000-tonne iron phosphate production line in Cangzhou, Hebei,
the PRC and have completed process transformation during
the Reporting Period and supplied products to downstream
customers, receiving favorable feedback.
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In light of its existing experience in environmental treatment on
fine chemicals, the Group commenced environmental protection
consultancy services at the end of 2017, providing consulting
services concerning atmospheric controlling and wastewater and
soil treatment, which began to continuously contribute revenue to
the Group in 2018.

Production facilities owned by the Group are mainly located in
Dongguang, Hebei Province and Dongying, Shandong Province of
the PRC.
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Financial Highlights
B RE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
For the year ended 31 December BZE+=-B=+—HLEE (REZ) (&E:Z)
REVENUE ¢~ 1,818,347 1,515,882
GROSS PROFIT EA 1,040,957 524,093
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 518,284 222,817
Profit attributable to: JEMRR A -
Owners of the parent JRREAA 517,927 222,901
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary BAREBE=ERA
equity holders of the parent: EIEBRAT
AR®¥RMB ARERMB
- Basic and diluted - BEARNEE 0.507C 0.217¢

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,818.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB302.4 million or 20.0% comparing
with that in the same period of 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, gross profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,041.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB516.9 million or 98.6% comparing
with that in the same period of 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB518.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB295.5 million or 132.6% comparing
with that in the same period of 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, basic and diluted
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent amounted to approximately RMBO0.50, representing an
increase of approximately RMB0.29 or 138.1% comparing with
that in the same period of 2018.

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMB0.092 per share, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM. Together with the special dividend (the “Special Dividend”)
of RMBO0.058 per share declared by the Board on 5 March 2020,
the dividends in aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2019
will amount to RMBO0.150 per share.

HE-_Z-NAF+_A=+—HILFE AEEHWK
HAOBARE1,8183BET BT /\FRHHE
MM ARM302.48EL320.0% °
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFEIEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BL%E

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE —FE-N\F ZT—+F ZT-RF ZZT-If
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETr ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Operating results — Summary  E&XEHE
Revenue Iz 1,818,347 1515882  1247,392 1,041,142 880,270
Gross profit ER 1,040,957 524,093 362,989 293,605 267,331
Profit for the year F R Fl 518,284 222,817 136,106 120,921 97,470
Profit attributable to: iR H
Owners of the parent ISYNGIEZ=PN 517,927 222,901 136,131 120,921 97,470
Balance sheet — Summary EESELRHE
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,724,977 1,634,095 1,278,371 1,013,486 849,555
Current assets MENEE 856,423 875,056 977,883 926,247 891,027
Total assets BEBE 2,581,400 2,509,151 2,256,254 1,939,733 1,740,582
Current liabilities mEaE 745,937 871,472 705,342 716,947 869,674
Non-current liabilities FRBAEE 69,022 317,794 408,976 261,801 8,356
Net assets BEFE 1,766,441 1,319,885 1,141,936 960,985 862,552
Financial ratio Bt =
Gross profit margin M= 57.3% 34.6% 29.1% 28.2% 30.4%
Net profit margin HF = 28.5% 14.7% 10.9% 11.6% 11.1%
Return on equity( RA R RO 33.6% 18.1% 12.9% 13.3% 16.3%
Current ratio® MENLL K@ 1.15 1.00 1.39 1.29 1.02
Net debt to equity ratio® EERBHEO 17.8% 49.3% 51.0% 43.9% 36.8%
Inventory turnover days® FEREXEY 112 59 41 39 46
Trade and notes receivables 2 5 WGIE R
turnover days® EREERAERHO 54 69 71 65 59
Trade payables turnover days®  EZZEMFERAEXHO 146 130 129 124 139

co

@F

A

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &

L2EEBRAT



Notes:

-'5"’-!.1_ _/!._ Y

Return on equity is derived by dividing net profit by total
equity, where total equity is the average beginning and ending
balances of total equity for the given period.

Current ratio is derived by dividing current assets by current
liabilities at the end of a given period.

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated at dividing interest-
bearing loans and other financial liabilities at the end of the
period by the total equity.

Inventory turnover days for a certain period is derived by
dividing the average inventory (the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of inventory of a given period)
by cost of sales and multiplying by the number of days in the
relevant period.

Trade and notes receivables turnover days for a certain period
is derived by dividing the average trade and notes receivables
(the arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of
trade and notes receivables of a given period) by revenue and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.

Trade payables turnover days for a certain period is derived
by dividing the average trade payables (the arithmetic mean of
the opening and closing balance of trade payables of a given
period) by cost of sales and multiplying by the number of days
in the relevant period.

L J

Five-Year Financial Summary
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, | am pleased to report the results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In 2019, the supervision of environmental protection and
production safety was tightened as accidents involving Chinese
chemical companies were occurring frequently. However, the
Group withstood these challenges, thanks to its investment
in the technology as well as research and development for
environmental protection over the years, as well as the possession
of comprehensive environmental facilities and equipment and
strict standards governing production safety. The Group achieved
rapid growth in business performance as well by virtue of its
leading position in the fine chemical market. As a result of the
evolving competitive environment on the market, the price of DSD
Acid, a core product of the Group, went up and stood at a high
gross profit level, but this high price depressed the downstream
demand in the meantime, so that the total revenue of the Group
increased by approximately 20.0% year-on-year to RMB1,818.3
million (2018: approximately RMB1,515.9 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW

As a leading company in the fine chemicals industry, the Group
endeavours to extend to the upstream, downstream and peripheral
businesses centring on its existing core products and businesses
and actively develop in the new energy and environmental
protection consultancy services industry to continuously increase
sources of revenue for the Group. In February 2017, the Group
began to build a production line for iron phosphate, a precursor
of anode material of lithium battery. As at the end of 2019,
the iron phosphate production line has completed technology
transformation and began to supply products to downstream
customers in small batches, receiving unanimous acclaim from
them.
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In 2019, the dye and agricultural chemical intermediates
segment remained the largest contributor to the Group’s revenue,
accounting for 83.0% of the total revenue. The segment includes
DSD Acid, OBA and mononitrotoluene products. DSD Acid is
mainly used in the production of OBA, and its end applications
include brightening elements of bleach for textile, brightening
of paper and detergents. Toluene generates three chemical
materials through chemical process, namely PNT, ONT and MNT.
PNT is the major raw material for DSD Acid production. After
commencing its own production of mononitrotoluene, the Group is
able to stabilise the upstream supply of raw materials. Meanwhile,
ONT and OT are important agricultural chemical intermediates in
the production of herbicides. In 2019, the segment contributed
revenue of approximately RMB1,509.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 24.5% compared with that for the same
period last year. During the Review Year, affected by the evolving
market competition landscape, the average sales price of DSD
Acid increased significantly. As a result, the gross profit margin of
the segment increased by approximately 26.7 percentage points
to approximately 62.1%.

In 2019, the revenue from pigment intermediates accounted for
14.5% of the Group’s total revenue overall, contributing revenue
of approximately RMB263.2 million. To continue to expand its
presence in the pigment intermediates market and enlarge its
global market share, the Group has successfully increased the
capacity of DMAS and DATA. During the Review Year, the sales
volume of pigment intermediates increased to approximately 8,858
tonnes, and the gross profit margin increased by approximately
3.8 percentage points to approximately 37.7% as compared with
that for the same period in 2018.

In 2019, revenue of the battery material segment accounted
for 0.5% of the Group’s total sales, contributing revenue of
approximately RMB8.4 million. During the Review Year, the
environmental technology consultancy business generated
revenue of approximately RMB37.1 million, with a gross profit
margin of approximately 24.1%.
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In addition to continuously consolidating existing businesses,

the Group expanded the capacity and upgraded technologies
for existing products, and increasingly diversified into related
industries to maintain steady growth in business revenue and
profit. During the Review Year, profit attributable to owners of
the parent company for the period increased by approximately
132.3% to approximately RMB517.9 million (2018: approximately
RMB222.9 million), as compared with that for 2018, whereas basic
and diluted earnings per share reached approximately RMB0.50
(2018: approximately RMBO0.21).

CONTINUOUS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND
PRODUCT OPTIMIZATION

The Group has always attached great importance to investment
in research and development. We constantly upgrade existing
technologies and products, actively develop more environmentally
friendly and advanced production technologies, and produce
more competitive products, to maintain our leading position in the
industry. At the same time, we also actively develop new products
and constantly enrich product categories to meet the diverse
needs of customers and enhance customer adhesiveness.

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
MULTICHANNEL COMMUNICATION

We have endeavoured to maximize our Shareholders’ value. Since
our Listing, we have implemented our corporate governance
policies and sought to comply strictly with the relevant provisions
of the corporate governance code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules to ensure all
decisions were made on the principles of trust and fairness and
in an open and transparent manner, so as to protect the interests
of all Shareholders. We value the importance of corporate
governance and will continue reviewing and monitoring our
corporate governance practices to ensure the compliance with the
corporate governance code.

N
J

o
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We have adopted proactive policies to welcome the valuable
opinions and suggestions from Shareholders and investors.
Through our capital market department, we maintain our investor
relations by regular and ad hoc interactions with investment
institutions to ensure prompt communication and understanding.
We also published our significant business progress and events
through press releases, announcements and our website in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations to ensure that
our latest information and reports are available for inspection and
perusal by the Shareholders and investors in time.

TO ASSUME CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We put emphasis on corporate social responsibilities and have
been, and intend to, remain committed to environmental, health
and safety protection in all of our business activities and gratefully
embraced our social responsibilities. We have all relevant permits,
licences and approvals relating to environmental and safety
production in all material respects. In addition, we have obtained
and maintained Quality Management System [1SO9001:2008,
Environmental Management System ISO 14001: 2004 and
Occupational Health Safety Management System GB/T28001-2011
for our management systems.

We care about staff growth and development. We secure
talents to satisfy the middle to long-term strategic development
of our personnel structure and hierarchy through continuous
nurturing mechanisms. In addition, we also care about staff's
family members. By establishing a good corporate culture and
a system designated for the well-being of staff members which
are conducive to their sense of belonging, we make continuous
optimization and innovations to offer a variety of benefits to every
member of our staff.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

In 2020, the Group will continue to apply the prudent business
expansion strategy by expanding the upstream and downstream
operations along the industry chain. Having consolidated the
market position in the existing businesses, the Group will look for
more new products and new businesses with synergetic effect
and continuously expand its product lines to increase the sources
of revenue. The Group will continue to step up investment in
environmental protection and research and development, carry out
research and development of the existing production techniques
and environmental treatment technologies, and develop new
products and techniques, to lay a solid foundation for the Group’s
long-term development.

In 2020, the operating environment of enterprises will remain
challenging. The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is
sweeping across the world, triggering a global panic and creating
an impact on the demands from domestic and overseas customers
and end customers of the Group to varying degrees. The impact
of the pandemic on the global economy is immeasurable.
Moreover, the international oil prices are fluctuating significantly,
and the China-U.S. trade frictions have not been resolved at all.
However, we do believe that we will be able to go through the
dark successfully with our years of experience in the fine chemical
production and operation, and give our assurance that the
Group will continue to operate steadily to achieve stable financial
performance.

Looking ahead, amid a complex and volatile market environment,
the Group will adjust, in terms of the traditional business, the
pricing strategy of the core products, especially the pricing
strategy of DSD Acid, in a timely manner to boost downstream
demand and keep the product sales and market share stabilised.
In respect of the new business segments, the environmental
consulting business has stabilised gradually after two years of
operation, and began to generate profits. The Group is serving a
diverse range of customers as it has obtained more credentials
in environmental protection, and therefore we believe the
environmental protection business will become one of the stable
sources of revenue for the Group.
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In respect of battery materials, the Group’s own iron phosphate
production line with a capacity of 15,000-tonne was ready for
mass production in 2019 and had generated some revenue, and
is expected to carry out large-scale mass production in 2020
to meet customer orders. Through continuous optimization of
production techniques and development of new technologies,
the Group won applause from customers for its iron phosphate
products because these products were made under complete
environmental facilities and had a stable quality. In 2020, as a
result of an upsurge created in the demand for cobalt-free electric
vehicles in the PRC, we will see new business opportunities
arising from the application of lithium-iron phosphate batteries as
batteries for electric vehicles. We believe that with the continuous
improvement of the technology for lithium-iron phosphate batteries
and the continuous optimization of costs, lithium iron phosphate
batteries will be used more extensively in new energy vehicles.
We believe that given our excellent product quality and complete
environmental facilities as well as continuous research and
development capabilities, the Group will seize this business
opportunity and expand more marketing channels to lay a
foundation for the long-term development of the battery materials
business segment.

Looking ahead, we will continue to look for potential acquisition
and merger projects to consolidate our position as a leading
industry player in our existing product fields and expand into
the new business segments that will make a synergy effect with
our existing businesses, so as to create a greater value for all
Shareholders.
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L
BUSINESS REVIEW ES qE)
Operating segment results REDHEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE-AF+-A=+—HLFE
Dye and Environmental
agricultural technology
chemical Pigment  consultancy Battery
intermediates intermediates service materials Total
FHR
BXL2m RERM
R BRI EE B AR LR ot
Revenue (RMB'000) Wi (AREFT) 1,509,631 263,188 37,093 8,435 1,818,347
Cost of sales (RMB’000) HERR(ARETT) 572,226 163,870 28,138 13,156 777,390
Sales volume (fons) HEHE (1) 45,945 8,858 N/A 742 55,545
Gross profit margin EME 62.1% 37.7% 24.1% (56.0%) 57.3%
Average unit selling price B THERE
(RMB/ton) (AE¥T, 1) 32,857 29,712 N/A 11,368 N/A
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-T-\F+-A=1T—HLHFE
Dye and Environmental
agricultural technology
chemical Pigment consultancy Battery
intermediates  intermediates service materials Total
AR
BEER RIRBRAN
R PR MR B E B
Revenue (RMB’000) Wi (ARETFT) 1,212,082 262,479 38,315 3,006 1,515,882
Cost of sales (RMB'000) WERK (AREFT) 783,496 173,564 31,871 2,858 991,789
Sales volume (fons) HEHE (W) 57,854 8,227 N/A 139 66,220
Gross profit margin EfE 35.4% 33.9% 16.8% 4.9% 34.6%
Average unit selling price B THER
(RMBY/ton) (ARET ) 20,951 31,905 N/A 21,626 N/A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group produces fine chemicals such as dye, pigment and
agricultural chemical intermediates, and ventured into lithium
battery cathode materials and additives to lithium batteries and
provision of environmental technology consultancy service in
2017.

The existing main operations of the Group remain stable and enjoy
a prominent position in the market. The Group has maintained
good business relationships with its main customers which span
over ten years on average. In 2019, revenue from the top five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
48.0% of the Group’s revenue for the year (2018: approximately
41.9%).

The Group has a well-established sales network, which covers
areas including Asia, Europe, North and South America. For the
Review Year, by regional distribution, revenue derived from the
Group’s sales in Mainland China accounted for approximately
53.5%; Indonesia accounted for approximately 10.4%; India
accounted for approximately 9.5%; and the United States of
America, Germany and other regions accounted for approximately
8.0%, 7.5% and 11.1%, respectively.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Review Year, total revenue of the Group increased by
20.0% to approximately RMB1,818.3 million (2018: approximately
RMB1,515.9 million) as compared with that in the same period of
2018. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in
product sales price of dye intermediates, which was offset by the
decrease in the sale volume.

As for gross profit, since the product prices of dye intermediates
increased significantly, the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately 98.6% to approximately RMB1,041.0 million
(2018: approximately RMB524.1 million) as compared with that of
2018. The overall gross profit margin of the Group increased to
approximately 57.3% in 2019 from approximately 34.6% of 2018.
On the other hand, the net profit of the Group for the year 2019
increased by approximately 132.6% to approximately RMB518.3
million (2018: approximately RMB222.8 million); net profit margin
was approximately 28.5% (2018: approximately 14.7%); and
basic earnings per share was approximately RMB0.50 (2018:
approximately RMB0.21).
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Dye and agricultural chemical intermediates — accounting
for approximately 83.0% of total revenue (2018:
approximately 80.0%)

During the Review Year, the evolving market competition
environment resulted in a significant rise in the price and a
decrease in the sales volume of the dye intermediates products.
Revenue generated from the sales of the dye intermediates
products increased by approximately 26.3% over 2018 to
approximately RMB1,185.3 million (2018: approximately RMB938.3
million), representing approximately 65.2% (2018: approximately
61.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. Due to the significant
increase in the sales volume of agricultural chemical intermediates
products resulted from the increased market demands, the
Group’s revenue generated from the sales of the agricultural
chemical intermediates products increased by approximately
18.4% over 2018 to approximately RMB324.3 million (2018:
approximately RMB273.8 million), representing approximately
17.8% (2018: approximately 18.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.
These two factors resulted in an increase of approximately
RMB297.5 million or approximately 24.5% in revenue from the
segment as compared with that of 2018.

During the Review Year, the gross profit margin of dye
intermediates increased by 34.0 percentage points to
approximately 74.3% (2018: approximately 40.3%). The gross
profit margin of the agricultural chemical intermediates decreased
by approximately 0.9 percentage point to approximately 17.7%
(2018: approximately 18.6%).

The Group is the world’s largest manufacturer of DSD acid.
DSD acid is mainly used in the production of optical brightening
agents, and its end applications include brightening elements for
the bleaching of textiles and brightening of paper and detergents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is one of the world’s three largest mononitrotoluene
manufacturers. Mononitrotoluene is the upstream product of DSD
acid. It generates three chemical materials through chemical
processes, namely PNT, ONT and MNT. PNT is the major raw
material for DSD Acid production. After commencing its own
production of mononitrotoluene, the Group is able to stabilise the
upstream supply of raw materials. Meanwhile, ONT and OT are
important agricultural chemical intermediates in the production of
agricultural chemicals and herbicides.

During the Review Year, market demand and supply were both
affected by the intensified environmental protection measures
implemented by the Chinese government. However, relying on
the Group’s continuous investment in technologies and capital for
environmental protection during production processes in the past,
the Group was able to gain an advantage in market competition
and obtain greater market predominance. In addition, the Group
raised product prices, resulting in a steady increase in revenue
from the segment compared with last year, under an overall
difficult market environment. The revenue generated from this
segment accounted for approximately 83.0% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Pigment intermediates — accounting for approximately
14.5% of total revenue (2018: approximately 17.3%)

During the Review Year, to increase market share, the Group
lowered sales prices of pigment intermediates. The average
unit selling price of pigment intermediates decreased by
approximately 6.9% from RMB31,905 per ton in 2018 to
RMB29,712 per ton in 2019. The average unit cost of pigment
intermediates decreased by approximately 12.3% from
RMB21,097 per ton in 2018 to RMB18,500 per ton in 2019. During
the Review Year, the sales volume of pigment intermediates of the
Group increased by 631 tons to approximately 8,858 tons (2018:
approximately 8,227 tons), and the revenue was approximately
RMB263.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 0.3%
as compared with last year.

During the Review Year, as the unit cost of pigment intermediates
decreased more than the unit price, the gross profit margin
increased by approximately 3.8 percentage points as compared
with 2018ato approximately 37.7% in 2019 (2018: approximately
33.9%).
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Environmental technology consultancy service -
accounting for approximately 2.0% of total revenue (2018:
approximately 2.5%)

With mounting pressure for environmental protection in Mainland
China and increasing demands from the environmental protection
treatment market, we leveraged our long-established edge in
environmental protection treatment and proactively cooperated
with third parties to conduct environmental technology
consultancy business, focusing on environmental technology
consultancy services regarding the atmosphere, sewage, and soil
treatment. During the Review Year, the environmental protection
business generated revenue of approximately RMB37.1 million
(2018: approximately RMB38.3 million), with a gross profit margin
of approximately 24.1% (2018: approximately 16.8%).

Battery materials — accounting for approximately 0.5% of
total revenue (2018: approximately 0.2%)

During the Review Year, the Group’s 15,000-ton iron phosphate
production line recorded revenue of approximately RMB8.4 million.
During the Review Year, the Group’s new production technology
for iron phosphate has successfully passed testing and is planned
to be officially put into mass production in 2020.

EXPORT

In 2019, the export revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB845.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB258.4 million or 44.0% as compared with the
export revenue of approximately RMB587.2 million in 2018. The
increase in export revenue of the Group was mainly due to the
increase in average sales price of dye intermediates.

In 2019, the export revenue accounted for approximately 46.5% of
the total revenue of the Group (2018: approximately 38.7%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group continues to optimise its production processes and
improve the quality of existing products, and has developed the
green process for iron phosphate (a battery material) by adopting
a new process to reduce waste water generation and costs,
and enhance product competitiveness. The Group increased
research on energy-saving and consumption-reduction processes,
optimised the nitrification process, made cascade use of steam,
and recycled process water, thereby reducing overall operating
costs. To address the rise in environmental protection standards,
the Group upgraded and renovated existing treatment facilities
and implemented ultra-low emission and treatment of smoke
plume for boilers, successfully accomplishing the tasks assigned
by the Chinese government.

With the belief that technological advancement is core
competitiveness, the Group will continue to maintain its investment
and efforts in research and development to retain the market
advantages enjoyed by its products and identify new growth
drivers.

OUTLOOK

During the Review Year, the business environment was
challenging. Frequent safety accidents in chemical companies
in China have led to tightened requirements by government on
the safety and environmental protection supervision of chemical
companies, imposing higher requirements for the business
management of the Group and peer companies. The China-U.
S. trade frictions have brought great uncertainty to the global
economic development, and increased the difficulty of exporting
chemical products to the United States. Faced with the complex
and changing market conditions, the Group remained confident.
With years of experience in fine chemical production and
operation, the Group increased investment in environmental
protection, improved environmental protection facilities,
enhanced research and development of environmental protection
technologies, and continued to strengthen production safety
management, so as to achieve sustainable corporate development
and continue to create value for the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”).
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2020 is bound to be an eventful year. The novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic triggered a world-wide spread of panic,
causing tumults in the financial market. The Chinese government
adopted strict prevention and control measures against the
pandemic, leading to large-scale suspension of work and
production of enterprises across China, tremendously affecting
the real economy. In 2019, due to the shortage of market supply,
the sales price of the Group’s core product DSD acid remained
high, suppressing the demands of downstream customers. In
2020, the Group will pay much attention to the impact caused by
the COVID-19 epidemic on the upstream and downstream as well
as overseas markets, and actively take measures accordingly.
Recently, the international crude oil prices fluctuated significantly,
and is expected to stay at low level for a period in the future,
which is expected to have certain impact on the price of raw
materials for the Group’s core products, as the core raw materials
of the Group are petroleum derivatives. Taking the above factors
into consideration, in order to face various uncertainties and the
possible global economic depression, the Group will adjust the
pricing strategy based on market conditions, proactively explore
the market for existing products and make greater efforts in the
research and development of new products as well as focus on
controlling the related expenses, thereby creating long-term,
stable and sustained enterprise value for the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As for the new business, mass production of iron phosphate,
the Group’s precursor product for battery cathode materials,
is expected to commence in 2020. After years of research and
development of product technology, the production process
of iron phosphate products has been further enhanced, and
environmental protection treatment technology has been further
optimised. The product has won the trust of downstream
customers with its excellent quality. In respect of the market,
lithium iron phosphate power batteries, due to its high safety,
low cost and increasing energy density, may again become the
mainstream of electric vehicle market applications, driving the
accelerated development of lithium iron phosphate batteries
and the surge of their market demand. The enhanced packing
technology of the batteries in market increases battery volume
density, while also causing the demand for lithium iron phosphate
In addition, energy storage
and base station power backup create incremental demand. As
such, the prospect of the lithium iron phosphate industry is getting
more promising. We believe that with our robust research and
development strength, superior product performance and premium
part of customer, the battery materials business will surely lay a
solid foundation for the Group’s future development.

power batteries to continue to rise.

In addition, the environmental protection consultancy business
has been gradually stabilised. In addition to the environmental
protection technology previously accumulated, the Group
has obtained more environmental protection consultancy
qualifications, allowing it to provide diversified services to more

customers.

Looking ahead, in addition to consolidating its existing business,
the Group will continue the expansion strategy of extending
upstream and downstream along the industrial chain, and actively
seek high-quality mergers and acquisitions with potential, so as to
create greater value for the Shareholders.
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REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT KERER
In 2019, the revenue and gross profit of the Group amounted to R =T —NF » AEEMFREREMD RO /A
approximately RMB1,818.3 million and approximately RMB1,041.0 K®¥ 1,818 3BETRNARKE1,041.08ET &
million, respectively, representing an increase of approximately ZE-N\EROARB1SI5 98BI ROARE
RMB302.4 million, and approximately RMB516.9 million or 524 1BEILDBIBMAARKI02.4BETRHOA
20.0% and 98.6% from approximately RMB1,515.9 million and *#516. 98 &L * 5020.0% [298.6% ° WA LF =
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approximately RMB524.1 million, respectively, in 2018. The ERR-_F-NFRHTHBERER EAMHE
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increase in the revenue was mainly due to a rise in the price of TREAREAME - R=F j_:_’f Z'K*%ﬂ*i_”%
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the dye intermediates products in 2019, which was offset by a I fjij\f%ﬂ*;‘ag%i‘l'ﬁf \;Eﬂ;%:
decrease in the sale volume. In 2019, the Group’s gross profit ﬁg\jﬁ;’%$7’<§"ﬂqﬂ%ﬁ RERTOHERRR
. ) o : ZE-NFEKRBR -
margin was approximately 57.3%, as compared with that of
approximately 34.6% in 2018. The increase in gross profit margin
was due to the significant increase in the average sales price of
the Group’s dye intermediates products in 2019.
NET PROFIT AND NET PROFIT MARGIN R RAER
In 2019, the net profit of the Group was approximately RMB518.3 RZF-NF  ARESBRIBHARKES18.38
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB295.5 ST’ ﬁ:?—/\iz%%’\]}\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁam gEcpl
million or 132.6%, as compared with approximately RMB222.8 ~ FIARM295. 6 HETH132.6% » N —Z — N4 -
= KI| 3R 4K 7 o, —FE— RI| SR 45 7
million in 2018. In 2019, the Group’s net profit margin was A~ BAEHIEK)328.5%  —F—/\FAFENR
approximately 28.5%, as compared with that of approximately LEa070
14.7% in 2018.
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES HERDHMAX
In 2019, selling and distribution expenses amounted to RZZE—AF  HERSHEHAXH/ARKI44.98
approximately RMB44.9 million, representing a decrease of St B_ZE—\FHR/ARK4Is5HET B
approximately RMB3.6 million, as compared with approximately AIARBI6EET - HERD HAXFREERR
RMB48.5 million in 2018. The decrease in selling and distribution R B SH & TR ATER ©
expenses was mainly due to the decline in sales volume of dye
intermediates.
In 2019, selling and distribution expenses represented RIZZT—NF @ HERDHEHAZOEREEKZER
approximately 2.5% of the Group’s revenue (2018: approximately  2.5% (ZZ—/\%F : £93.2%) °
3.2%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2019, administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB188.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB56.8 million, as compared with approximately RMB131.6
million in 2018. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the following reasons: (i) the increase in
environmental protection-related charges paid to the agents; (ii)
the increase in the depreciation expenses and labor costs of
certain production lines during the maintenance process; should
they be in non-maintenance status, the above expenses would
have been included in costs instead of administrative expenses;
and (iii) the increase in labor costs due to enhanced staff benefits.

In 2019, administrative expenses represented approximately
10.4% of the Group’s revenue (2018: approximately 8.7%).

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF PROPERTY, PLANTS AND
EQUIPMENT

In 2019, the Group has provided for the impairment losses of
property, plants and equipment of RMB52.0 million (2018: RMBO.7
million). The increase in impairment losses were mainly attributed
to the impairment provision of the TCCBM CGU, the NMP CGU and
certain equipment used for researching and testing. For more details,
please refer to note 14 to financial statements of this report.

FINANCE COSTS

In 2019, finance costs amounted to approximately RMB31.7
million, as compared with approximately RMB22.8 million in 2018,
representing an increase of approximately RMB8.9 million. The
increase was mainly due to the following reasons: (i) the increase
in banking fees due to increased factoring of bills receivables
accepted by banks; (ii) the increase in interest expenses of
financing services provided by China National Offshore QOil Sale
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. and its associates to improve the working
capital management of the Group’'s overseas sales; and (iii)
the increase in front end fee incurred from early repayment of
syndicated loans.
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EXCHANGE LOSS

In 2019, exchange loss amounted to approximately RMB8.4
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB9.2 million,
as compared with approximately RMB17.6 million in 2018,
which was mainly attributable to the significant fluctuation in the
exchange rate of RMB against USD and the decrease in loans
denominated in USD during the Review Year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are generally subject to the
enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%. One of the subsidiaries of
the Company in Hong Kong is subject to the two-tier tax regime,
i.e., the first HKD2 million of assessable profits earned will be
taxed at half the current Hong Kong profits tax rate (i.e., 8.25%),
and the remaining assessable profits will continue to be taxed
at 16.5%. Other Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Company are
generally subject to the Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5%.
The Singapore subsidiary of the Company is generally subject to
the Singapore Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 17%. In 2019,
income tax expenses amounted to approximately RMB191.4
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB105.3
million, as compared with approximately RMB86.1 million in 2018.
The increase in income tax expense was mainly attributable to the
increase in profit before tax during the Review Year as compared
with that in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CASH FLOWS

In 2019, net cash inflows from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB564.9 million, as compared with
approximately RMB216.7 million in 2018, representing an increase
of approximately RMB348.2 million, which was mainly due to the
increase in revenue and profit in 2019 as compared with that in
2018.

In 2019, net cash outflows used in investing activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB213.7 million, as compared with
approximately RMB463.1 million in 2018, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB249.4 million, which was mainly due to the
decrease in capital expenditure and payment for production line
constructed in Tsaker Chemical (Dongying) Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company as well as decrease in payment
for iron phosphate production line as it was ready for mass
production in late 2019.

In 2019, the Group’s net cash outflows used in financing activities
was approximately RMB369.6 million, as compared with the net
inflow of approximately RMB10.0 million in 2018. Such increase in
cash outflows in 2019 were mainly due to the increase in the net
cash outflows of approximately RMB390.4 million as a result of the
repayment of bank loans and other borrowings as compared with
that of 2018.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2019 the daily working capital of the Group was primarily
derived from internally generated cash flow from operations and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had (i)
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB104.8 million, in
which approximately RMB100.2 million was denominated in RMB
and approximately RMB4.6 million in other currencies (USD, HKD
and SGD) (as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB124.3
million, in which approximately RMB75.8 million was denominated
in RMB and approximately RMB48.5 million in other currencies
(USD and HKD)); (ii) restricted cash of approximately RMB3.9
million, including approximately RMB3.8 million denominated in
RMB and RMBO0.1 million denominated in another currency (USD)
(as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB20.2 million, in
which approximately RMB1.0 million was denominated in RMB
and RMB19.2 million in other currencies (USD and HKD)): and
(iii) interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB313.8 million with interest rate of 4.61%-13.45% per annum,
including (a) approximately RMB223.5 million denominated in RMB
and RMB90.3 million denominated in another currency (USD), of
which approximately RMB283.9 million shall be repayable within
one year (as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB651.2
million with interest rate of 4.52%-10.84% per annum, including
approximately RMB208.6 million denominated in RMB and
approximately RMB442.6 million denominated in other currencies
(USD and HKD), of which approximately RMB364.8 million shall
be repayable within one year); and (b) approximately RMB223.5
million bearing fixed interest rates (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB208.7 million). The Group had unutilised
banking facilities of RMB39,881,000 in aggregate as at 31
December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: Nil). For more details
on maturity profile on the Group’s borrowings, please refer to note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

In 2019, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument or
have any borrowing or hedge in its foreign currency investment.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position for the year ended 31 December 2019.
To manage the liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019,
approximately 17.8% as compared with approximately 49.3% as

the Group’s gearing ratio was

at 31 December 2018, which is calculated at interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings at the end of the year divided by the
total equity. The decrease was primarily due to the repayment of
syndicated loans by the Group during the Review Year.

CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the total current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB856.4 million (as at 31 December
2018: approximately RMB875.1 million),
inventories of approximately RMB274.2 million (as at 31 December
2018: approximately RMB210.0 million),
notes receivable of approximately RMB286.0 million (as at 31

primarily consisting of
trade receivables and
December 2018: approximately RMB254.5 million), prepayments
and other receivables of approximately RMB187.4 million (as at
31 December 2018: approximately RMB266.1 million), cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB104.8 million (as at 31
December 2018: approximately RMB124.3 million) and restricted

cash of approximately RMB3.9 million (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB20.2 million).

INVENTORIES

Inventories of the Group mainly consisted of raw materials,
work-in-progress and finished products. The inventory turnover
days increased from 59 days in 2018 to 112 days in 2019, the
increase in the inventory turnover days was mainly due to the
increase in inventories. The increase in inventory helps the
Company cope with instabilities in the market and enhances the
stability of production and supply.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Management Discussion and Analysis
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ESEWFREREREE
2019 2018
—E-AE —E—)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Trade receivables B S EWEE 203,276 186,316
Notes receivable FEW =& 82,761 68,224
286,037 254,540
As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables and notes receivable —NE+ZA=1+—0  XEEEFREER

of the Group increased by approximately RMB31.5 million as
compared with those of last year.

The turnover days for trade receivables decreased from 69 days
for 2018 to 54 days for 2019, which was mainly due to the Group’s
intensified efforts to collect receivables and the increase in sales
revenue in 2019 as compared that of 2018.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2019, prepayments and other receivables
of the Group decreased by approximately RMB78.7 million from
approximately RMB266.1 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB187.4 million in aggregate, which was
mainly due to the decrease in the advance payment for equipment
and construction costs as well as raw materials.

\
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the total current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB745.9 million (as at 31
December 2018: approximately RMB871.5 million), primarily
consisting of trade payables of approximately RMB283.3 million
(as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB345.5 million),
other payables and accruals of approximately RMB119.8 million
(as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB100.9 million) and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB283.9 million (as at 31 December 2018: approximately
RMB364.8 million).

TRADE PAYABLES

The turnover days for trade payables increased from 130 days
in 2018 to 146 days in 2019. The increase in the turnover days
was mainly due to the suppliers extended the payment period for
the Group based on our excellent business credit and business
negotiation ability in the market.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2019, other payables and accruals of
the Group increased by approximately RMB18.9 million from
approximately RMB100.9 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB119.8 million in aggregate, which
was mainly due to the increase in salaries payable to employees
during the Review Year.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and trade receivables with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB204.0 million (as at 31
December 2018: approximately RMB223.3 million) were pledged
to secure bank loans and other borrowings granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 14 March 2019, the Company was allocated 11,119,000
shares of China Risun Group Limited (Stock Code: 1907.HK)
(“China Risun”) at the final offer price of HK$2.80 per share. The
total subscription price paid by the Company in respect of these
shares is approximately HK$31.447 million, which is determined
by multiplying the final number of these shares and the final
offer price plus the SFC transaction levy at 0.0027%, the Stock
Exchange trading fee at 0.005% and brokerage commission at
1%. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 14 March 2019.

According to the prospectus of China Risun, China Risun is an
integrated coke, coking chemical and refined producer and
supplier in China. Details of the business of China Risun are set
out in the prospectus of China Risun, which has been published
on the website of the Stock Exchange on 28 February 2019.
During the Review Year, there was no significant fluctuation in the
share price of China Risun. On the last trading day of 2019, its
closing price was HK$2.6 per share, and the total market value of
the shares held by the Group was approximately HK$28.9 million,
accounting for approximately 1.6% of the net asset value of the
Group. As at 31 December 2019, the Group received dividend
of approximately HK$2.7 million from China Risun. China Risun
declared the dividend as per its dividend policy. The share price
may fluctuate. The Company will evaluate this investment on a
regular basis.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, or significant investment of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT

. Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

BEEEH

RZZE—NEF+ZA=+—10  AEEEKFETER
EFRBOAARK204 088 T (RS —N\F+=
A=+—8 : HARB223 358 L) 2V BE
B FRAREERESEBRBUERNIER
BRZIRITERREMBER o

ERKE HEWBAR BEQARAREE
TEUREARE

RZZE-—NF=ZA+WB  ARADREREEE
BR80T E ST EMEEEBR AT (RHHK
5% - 1907 .HK) ([ B8R J) 11,119,000 A& 7 °
RARIMZERO I HNREEREALS31.4478
BET  DRBRENROEE RARKEERS
N0.0027 % BEER FHHE « 0.005%HRXARFHE
RA%GELAESET - FEEAARRBHAT—
NE=ZA+TMHENASE

RBTPEBE 2 BERHAE - PRBGREESFEE
xR BlEERREACIEREER REER -+
BBz EZBHBEHINTEERZBRER (2
RZZB-NFZAZ+N\BFBRBRZAAE) - 1
SR - PEBEHOREEECORS  R-F—
NFEHREZ—EZZH  HERBEGHKERERTK2.6
B AEBERKERZETEN289B8EET © 16
REFEEEFEND1.6% BE_T—NF+-A
=+—H  AEBERITEBEHOREL27TEEE
T FEEBEBERERRKE - MEEEXE
KE) - ARRHEZIREETEHRRE -

BRABREREEN BE_ZT-NF+-A=1+—
BIEFE  AEEREEAREREENBAR - B
ERRRBELRKEARE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments or
capital assets acquisition as at 31 December 2019 and the date
of this report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in the exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of
the Group is mainly related to its operating activities. Along with
the continuous expansion of the scale of its export business, the
Group’s operations may be affected by the future fluctuation in
exchange rates. The Group is closely monitoring the impact of
fluctuation in currency exchange rates on the foreign exchange
risk of the Group.

The Group currently does not have any hedging policy for foreign
currencies in place. However, the Board will remain alert to any
relevant risks and, if necessary, consider to hedge any material
potential foreign exchange risk.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has established human resources policies and systems
with a view to achieving effective management in all aspects and
building a learning-oriented organisation by providing motivational
rewards through a proper reward system and offering employees
various training programs including internal/external training and
public courses.

In support of the Group’s talent development strategy, we built a
talent information system and a succession system in 2017, and
completed the further drawing of a talent map using a competency
model.

The remuneration package offered to the employees (including the
Directors) was in line with their duties and the prevailing market
terms. Staff benefits, including bonus, training schemes, pension
fund, medical coverage, provident funds etc., were also provided
to the employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,553 employees (2018:
1,694).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total staff costs of
the Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances and
provident funds) amounted to approximately RMB164.4 million
(2018: approximately RMB142.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

Trading of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange commenced on 3 July 2015
(the “Listing”). The net proceeds from the Listing amounted to
approximately RMB378.8 million. The net proceeds are used for
the purposes disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
23 June 2015 (the “Prospectus”).

Till 31 December 2019, the net proceeds of approximately
RMB37.9 million, RMB189.4 million, RMB37.9 million, RMB18.9
million and RMB20.6 million have been used as the supplemental
working capital, for the expansion of production capacity, for the
development of new products, for the rental payment of Phase
| and Phase Il of Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Ltd.
(“Tsaker Dongao”), and for the purchase of the entire equity
interest of Tsaker Dongao, respectively. During the Review Year,
the Company has not utilised any net proceeds from the Listing.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of unutilised net proceeds
amounted to approximately RMB74.1 million, which are intended
to be used to acquire ONT/OT downstream manufacturers and/
or other chemicals manufacturers. The major uncertainties in the
domestic and international political and economic environment
and the increasingly stringent environmental protection and safety
supervision in China pose great challenges for the Group to carry
out its acquisition business. The Group is still actively seeking
acquisition targets and conducting negotiations thereon. As at
the date of this report, no legally-binding agreements in relation
to such acquisitions have been entered into. The unutilised net
proceeds are intended to be fully utilised by the end of 2021 for
the purposes disclosed in the Prospectus.
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ABOUT TSAKER CHEMICAL
Business Review

Since its establishment in 1997, Tsaker Chemical Group
Limited (the “Company” or “Tsaker Chemical’, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) has been committed
to integrating green technology into research and
development and production of fine chemicals such as
dyes and pigment intermediates, and was successfully
listed on the Stock Exchange in 2015. As one of the global
leading manufacturers of dyes, pigments and agricultural
chemical intermediates, Tsaker Chemical has the world’s
largest production plant for DSD Acid and DMSS, as
well as one of the world’s three largest mononitrotoluene
production plants. The Group’s headquarters and Research
and Development Center (“R&D Center”) are located in
Beijing, while its production facilities are mainly located in
Hebei Dongguang and Shandong Dongying. Perceiving
the evolving market demand for environmental protection
and product quality day by day, Tsaker Chemical not only
invests resources in developing new product, but also
focuses on optimizing existing products and gradually
improving green operations, thereby establishing a global
customer base for steady business development.

Vision and Core Values

Tsaker Chemical adheres to the corporate philosophy of “to
build a better world with green technology”, integrating the
Group’s core goals and values in pursuit of excellence. In
addition to pledging to provide customers with high-quality
and reliable innovative products and services, the Group
also focuses on fulfilling corporate social responsibility to
ensure that the Group’s business abides by integrity and
environmental protection principles. The Group pursues
constant efforts to scale up its investment in environmental
protection and the research and development of
eco-friendly technologies, leading Tsaker Chemical and
the society to drive sustainable development as a whole.
The Group’s operations have three major priorities: actively
conduct innovative research and development, focus on
safety and environmental protection (“S&E”) manufacturing,
and employee well-being.
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2.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group hereby publishes its Environment, Social and
Governance (‘ESG”) Report and presents its sustainability
performance. In order to deepen stakeholders’
understanding of the Group’s operations, management and
working culture, the report content aims to increase the
disclosure of the Group’s sustainability strategy, practices,

performance and other relevant information.

Reporting Standard and Scope

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environment, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The report
covers the environmental and social performance of Tsaker
Chemical’'s Beijing headquarter, Tsaker Technology, the
Dongguang production plants (Tsaker Dongguang and
Tsaker Cangzhou) and the Dong’ao production plant from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”). Information on corporate governance have been
separately presented in the annual report in accordance
with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. As the battery
material production plant in Hebei Cangzhou has not
yet been mass-produced, it is insignificant to this year’s
business operation and hence, the production plant was
not included in the reporting scope.
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Tsaker Chemical Group Limited :

Stakeholder Engagement and Communication
Channels

In a bid to reinforce the oversight on ESG aspects,
the Group attaches importance on interaction with
internal and external stakeholders and collection of their
valuable opinions. Meanwhile, the feedback from various
stakeholders also facilitates the Group’s operational
management and further improves the quality of its
products and services. Through regular communication
with the stakeholders, the Group is enabled to identify
and update the sustainable development issues that they
value, effectively mobilizing Tsaker Chemical’'s green
development. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has interacted with stakeholders through the following
communication channels:

Stakeholder Group
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Main Communication Channels

TRBERE

Media
B

Suppliers
e

Customers
Es

Employees

(=1

Interview

Bili

Group’s Website
A
Social Media
AR EE

Site Visits

B E R

Assessment and Performance Evaluation
Bz RRBEFM

Meeting

=
@ %

Customer Service

B RS

Group’s Website

1ML

Social Media

A ES

Customers Satisfaction Survey

BEFMEERE

Electronic Communication
BFE

Staff Meeting

BIXRS

Team Building Activities
H@ED

Seminar and Workshop
Hate kIES
Performance Appraisal
BREZ

Welfare Distribution Activities
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Stakeholder Group

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - #HERERRE

Main Communication Channels

BHEBER TEBBRE
Investors Face-to-face Meeting and Teleconference
REE EAREREGHE

Shareholders

BER

Government

BT
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Investor Briefing

REEH®R

Investor Relations Page in the Group’s Website
PEPENIREERES A

Annual Report, Interim Report, Financial Reports and Announcements
Fik - hHWmE  MBBRRERASE

Annual General Meeting

BEXReg

Annual Report, Interim Report, Financial Reports and Announcements
Fil - PHIWmE  BMBBRREAE

Face-to-face Meeting and Teleconference

HAREFEE

Group’s Website

=3l

Public Consultation
RRHH
Meeting
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2.3.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Materiality Assessment 2.3.

Strategic sustainable development approach,
comprehensive ESG risk management and timely grasp
on business opportunities are vital to the development of
a corporate. In view of this, the Group’s Board of Directors
has appointed a third-party environmental sustainability
consultancy company to determine and focus on the
management of business-related sustainability issues. The
identified environmental and social issues are listed below:
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Environmental Topics
RIEEE

Social Topics

HEEE

Air Emissions

& RBERR

Energy Consumption
BUIRE A

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
BE R

Water Consumption
FA7K

Wastewater Discharge
YaIKEERR

Waste Management
FEEME IR

Supply Chain Management

HrEgEE R

Quality Assurance

o ER7E

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights
HEE B ERE

Securing Customers’ Privacy

RER PR

After-sales Services

E1& R

Safeguarding Employees’ Health And Safety
RIEETRERZS

Employment and Labour Practices
EENSITER

Employees’ Well-being

BTN

Training and Development
BRI R

Anti-corruption

k&S

Community Investment
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2.4,

2.5.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited :

Reporting Theme

In an effort to highlight the professional image and
corporate value of Tsaker Chemical, the reporting theme
of this year is “adhere to professional standards, grow a
green community”™:

Adhere to professional standards

In compliance with the production philosophy of emphasis
on quality and S&E, the Group is committed to nurturing
a professional and outstanding team, and establishing
standards for each production process and quality
management system.

Grow a green community

Stressing resource efficiency, energy saving and emission
reduction, and people-oriented operations, the Group fully
shoulders its social responsibilities and spreads care and
color from workplace to every corner of the community.

Contact Details

If you have any comments or suggestions regarding this
report, please contact the investor relations department
or the Contact Person of ESG Committee at the address
below:

Building No. 10, 109 Jinghaisanlu, Beijing Economic-
Technological Development Area, the PRC

Contact Person of ESG Committee: Yang Fuguang
(Telephone: 0317-7750925)
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Tsaker Chemical
Group Limited, | am pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Group. With rapid
development of the Group’s business, we have growing
expectations for safety, environmental protection and
quality performance in pursuit of sustainable development
and shouldering our corporate social responsibility.

In order to further fulfil the corporate promise of “to build a
better world with green technology”, we have established
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
("ESG Committee”) during the Reporting Period, in which
all of the committee members have been working at Tsaker
Chemical for over 20 years and thus are familiarized with
the Group’s business operations. Our main purpose of
establishing the ESG Committee is to assist the Group
in formulating ESG-related strategies in a timely manner,
including implementing and monitoring relevant initiatives
and policies, and strengthening communication with
stakeholders such as employees, consumers and investors.
The organization structure of the ESG Committee is as
follows:
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - #HERERRE

ESG Committee
Organization Structure

ESGZESABEE
1
| | | | | | | | L}
Duan Weihua Duan Weidong R Liu Wei Shi Bingfeng
BRiEE BRER Committee 2 AR
Chairman Committee member Member and Working Committee member Committee member
= Group Lead = =
IR =8 ZERLIAEE =8 =8
|
| | | | | |
Xu Jin Cui Beiwen Duan Rongrong
#®e 3188 12434
Team member Team member Team member
IE#HEB IE#HE IE4AE
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Looking back at 2019, we have remained committed to
adhering to stringent standards of quality management
and S&E production, providing reliable and safe products
and services to customers across the globe. Meanwhile,
with an aim to become the role model for the industry on
the social and environmental aspects, we also place great
importance to people-oriented operations, guaranteeing
respect for human rights and protecting rights and benefits
of employees.

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all internal and external stakeholders for their
support to the Group, enabling Tsaker Chemical to start
another fruitful year. We are committed to building on this
achievement, and continue working together to build a
greener and more colorful working and living environment
in the coming year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ge Yi
25 March 2020
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ENSURING STRINGENT PRODUCTION

Providing excellent and reliable products is a pivotal
element of a corporate’s sustainable development. From
supply chain management to each of the standardized
production and quality control procedures, Tsaker
Chemical is dedicated to abiding by its professionalism,
enhancing supplier’'s sustainability awareness through
engagement with them, and strictly assuring product
quality and services to meet customers’ needs, fulfilling the
crucial mission of pursuing excellence.

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

In support of sustainable development, Tsaker Chemical
regards the impact of raw materials supply and selection
on operations and the environment as one of the
indispensable considerations. In this regard, the Group
has been devoted to cooperation with suppliers who value
environmental and social responsibility, joining hands to
build a green and stable supply chain.

The procurement department of the Group has established
a sustainable supply chain management system in
accordance with the 1SO14001:2015 Environmental
Management System. When selecting suitable suppliers,
the procurement department shall evaluate whether or
not the materials and services provided by suppliers
meet certain requirements such as quality and safety,
productivity, price and service level. The Group shall
also review the supplier's performance in terms of
environmental and social responsibilities. For instance,
during the process of purchasing dangerous chemicals, it
is mandatory for the manufacturers to hold valid production
and operation permits, and showcase holistic management
for transporting and storing dangerous chemicals and
emergency response systems to protect public safety.
In addition, the Group shall also assess if suppliers have
offered environmental protection training for their personnel
on a regular basis.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A 7

Environment, Social and Governance Report

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BREBHEE

RHUEMBAENER  REEXARKEERRE
MEEN R - tHEREEESEKREL
AERMEEHRR  PREBRNETE
X o BRREHEENED - MRHEEE
BEROER IERBRUARERDEERY
BE - AmEEFPME  EMETEREH
MEZED °

41, JHENHERSE

BB HfEMEEHEENRROTET
FREBRAFERRT T LR ZE BE
Zz— Bt AEE-HERNHEBERE
EtgBENHERAE  HEREREBE
e o

RNEB AR SBILIBISO14001:20153R 5
ERER RUAFENEEEETERL -
EREBEAENHERR KBS AFTGHERE
RFTREAOMHEREEE 6 TRELS
HEKRE BREBREKESZERK - A&H
NeEZHEFERERMSETHEME
0 FlanERBERCERESHRTES:
ERVAREAREERGENE WA
ERENGRIEEREERTRER UK
EEEEFE  REQARLE - Rtz
REENSTHHERELTREZABSTHE
HIRRIFI -



Environment, Social and Governance Report

Regardless of existing or potential suppliers, the Group
evaluates them with fair and objective criteria in order to
establish ideal cooperation relationships with high-quality
and upright suppliers. Suppliers who are first contacted
are categorized into different grades based on major
performance indicators and regarded as backup suppliers.
While maintaining the Group’s stable supply chain, Tsaker
Chemical also hopes that this practice could benefit
lower-grade suppliers by providing them with relevant
feedback. Re-assessments will be conducted after their
improvement is made.

Striving to consider the sustainable performance of some
suppliers in a more accurate manner, the Group conducts
annual field inspections at their production units. Apart
from implementing appropriate follow-up and monitoring
measures for the suppliers based on the grades assessed
on ESG aspects, the Group determines the cooperation
period that is subject to actual improvement. To minimize
environmental and social risks, the Group emphasizes
consistently close communication with its suppliers.
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Moreover, the Group is also highly concerned about carbon
emissions incurred by the transportation of materials.
In view of this, the Group prioritizes cooperation with
local suppliers, hence reducing environmental pollution
while promoting local economic development and green
procurement.

Geographical Distribution of Suppliers

Rt E 2 M

Overseas
N
0.5% ad he,
.'. Local 7 ."
640
99.5%
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Quality Control

In hopes of satisfying customers’ expectations and
maintaining a sound reputation of the corporate, Tsaker
Chemical adheres to rigorous quality standards. While
managing production efficiency, the Group also ensures
the accuracy of material use so as to avoid unnecessary
wastage of the resources.

With stringent quality control, the Group is honored to be
recognized and affirmed by the local government and
professional institutions. During the Reporting Period, the
R&D and technology of Tsaker Chemical obtained a total of
13 awards and certifications as follows:

Awarding Organization
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Name of Corporate Award

EXRFHE

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

LA TEANEE R

Industrial Cooperate Development
Association Certificate of Hebei Providence

AAEE TECEMBERBTE

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

AL TEMEB R

Hebei Small and Medium-sized
Enterprises (“SME”) Famous
Brand Approval

AR NEEREETEES

Hebei SME Famous Brand
bR N EELRED

Hebei Administration for Industry & Commerce
AR TRITRERR

Well-known Trademark of Hebei

AILEERET

Hebei Provincial Department of Science
and Technology
AL B BRI EE

Hebei Provincial Finance Department

L& B R

Hebei Development and Reform Commission

Mt EERINNEZE S

Hebei Dye and Pigment Intermediates
Engineering Technology Centre
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Name of Corporate Award

ERRIFHE

Hebei Provincial Department of Science
and Technology
LA BRI

Technological SME of Hebei Providence

AL RHR R R

Hebei Development and Reform Commission

MR ERINELZE S

Hebei Provincial Department of Finance

AAcE B R

State Taxation Administration of Hebei Province

AL EBEARBRE R

Hebei Province Local Taxation Bureau
AL B E RSB

ShidiaZhuang Customs District
People’s Republic of China
ARG

Hebei Provincial Enterprise Technical Centre
L& RTE R BT L

Hebei Provincial Department of
Science and Technology

AL E BB

Science and Technology Small Giant

EEUNEPN

China Petroleum and Chemical

Industry Federation
PEARN BT ERE S

Green Factory in Petroleum
and Chemical Industry

AMAE TITRARB TR

Industry and Information Technology
Department People’s Republic of China
PE ARFEMBE TEME S L E

China Federation of Industrial Economics
PREIELERSS

Single Champion Product
in Manufacturing Industry
BEXEIREEEM

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

LA TEME SR

Specialized and Outstanding New Enterprise
EREB
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Awarding Organization

RS
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Name of Corporate Award

EXRIFHE

China Fine Chemical Raw Material &
Intermediate Industry Association

2RBAME T RE L EEBITRGIER

China Chemical Industry
Information Association
FEL TERESHE

Top 100 Fine Chemical
BT A%

China Environmental News
AR BERIE AT

Governing Unit of China Green
Development Alliance

PR ERRYEIEEEM

China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation
PRI EBE S

China Chemical Enterprise Management Association
FE(EThEERERS

Top 500 Chinese Petroleum
and Chemical Enterprises 2019
20197 B A m AL T 550054
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4.3.

Under the framework of the 1SO9001: 2015 Quality
Management System, the Group assures that all production
units implement quality inspection procedures and
guidelines. In addition, Tsaker Chemical’s manufacturing
facilities are well equipped with sophisticated inspection
equipment which undergoes regularly check-ups and
maintenance to ensure its accuracy for comprehensive
and precise quality control. The Group also continuously
improves and refines product quality and production
procedures through ongoing product research.

As the manufacturing environment is one of the keys to
success in maintaining product quality, the Group strictly
stipulates that the goods must be properly stored at a
warehouse in strict controls of temperature and humidity.
The facilities of all production units are cleaned twice a
day to ensure the sanitary requirements of the plant are
fulfilled.

In the meantime, the Group places great emphasis on the
development of new products in response to rising market
demands. Therefore, the Group actively provides technical
support and assistance in analyzing the feasibility of
potential products to strategy development department,
anticipating to roll out competitive products. The R&D
department also collects chemical residues from the
production plants, and conducts resource research on the
production of chemical residues, such as the possibility
of turning them into products, with an aim to reduce
the impact of residual chemicals on the environment. It
demonstrates the Group’s determination to strike a balance
between environmental protection and innovation.

Fulfilling Product Responsibility

Customers’ support and trust are the cornerstone of Tsaker
Chemical’s reputation. In this regard, the Group strives to
provide customers with satisfactory products and services,
and establish consistent and good relationship with them.
By conducting customer satisfaction surveys, the Group is
able to better understand the perspectives of customers,
further improving the quality of its products and services.
On account of the Group’s professional knowledge
and responsible services, the survey results during the
Reporting Period showed that the products provided by
the Group received customer satisfaction scores of higher
than 95 points (out of 100), and have not received any
complaints about dissatisfaction with product and service.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t E2EBEHRA T
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4.4.

4.5.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Customers’ comments and feedback can effectively
drive the improvement of Tsaker Chemical. The Group
has established a complaint handling and product recall
mechanism, and its quality assurance department is
responsible for following up on customer feedback and
arranging investigations, which are reviewed by team
leaders. For after-sales complaints, the Group shall
send the products involved to the quality assurance
department for thorough investigation. If the investigation
results attest that the incident is due to the Group’s fault,
relevant department(s) shall arrange product recall and
re-manufacture a new batch of products for customers in
a timely manner. In an effort to avoid repeated mistakes,
the Group will also use the previously handled complaints
as a case sharing to raise other employees’ awareness
and discuss together to improve production and inspection
procedures as well as countermeasures. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any incidents
in which products had to be recalled due to safety and
health issues.

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

While continuously developing and innovating business,
Tsaker Chemical also emphasizes the intellectual property
rights of itself and its partners. The Group has formulated
relevant policies and codes in accordance with local laws
and regulations, and strictly requires employees to follow
relevant regulations. During the process of cooperation
with third parties, Tsaker Chemical carefully handles
and protects the Group’s and stakeholders’ proprietary
technologies in an effort to safeguard their intellectual
property rights and business interests.

Securing Customer Privacy

The Group has always been committed to securing the
privacy of customers and upholding business integrity.
For instance, the Group articulates that a confidentiality
agreement must be signed when negotiating with suppliers,
customers or partners in a bid to fully protect the interests
of all parties. In addition, the Group has issued clear
guidelines to employees at all positions regarding the
collection and handling of customers’ personal or business
information in order to prevent leakage of customer
informatien.
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5.1

BUILDING A SAFE AND ENVIRONMENTALLY
FRIENDLY WORKPLACE

Tsaker Chemical views its employees as an important
pillar to support the Group’s sustainable operations with
innovation and security. In this regard, the Group prioritizes
the creation of zero-accident and environmentally-friendly
working environment, outlining Tsaker Chemical’s
commitment to safeguarding the safety and health of its
employees. To ensure the compliance and execution of
safety production, the Group has formed a S&E department
at each production unit. The department conducts
weekly meetings with the production management and
representatives, during which the representatives make
feasible suggestions or feedback on S&E production.
Additionally, the S&E department also explains the latest
relevant policies to the attendees. The establishment of
the S&E department helps foster communication between
frontline employees and the management, jointly building a
safe and eco-friendly workplace.

Safety Management

Tsaker Chemical’ employees often have to handle and
carry out mixing works of various types of chemicals.
In view of this, the Group is dedicated to protecting the
safety of employees and eliminating occupational hazards.
Through strictly complying with the requirements of local
fire protection and GB/T28001-2011 occupational health
and safety management system, the Group ensures that all
production units adopt holistic safety measures and that all
employees have high safety awareness and demonstrate
professional performance.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT
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Use and Storage of Dangerous Chemicals

In order to ensure that employees use hazardous
chemicals correctly, the Group has formulated practical
safety guidelines in place for their better understanding
of the hazards and risks that the use of chemicals pose.
This can help guarantee the safety of employees when
storing, loading and unloading, transporting, and using
the chemicals. In addition, the Group also stipulates that
dangerous chemicals must be properly classified and
labeled, and stored separately according to zones to
prevent accidents caused by storage with incompatible
items. Each production unit has assigned responsible staff
to supervise the use and storage of hazardous chemicals,
and formulated standardized handling guidelines relating
to chemical spills and conduct regular chemical spill drills
to effectively reduce the employees’ risk of injuries due to
accidents.

Raising Safety Awareness

Tsaker Chemical advocates “prevention for safety”
throughout the production process. Thus, the Group
pursues efforts to enhance employees’ safety awareness
via different channels. For example, every new employee
must receive safe production guidance from eligible
current employees on a one-to-one basis, helping them to
adapt to the working environment as soon as possible, and
reminding them of potential work injury crises on-site.

To keep the employees updated of the Company’s safety
measures in a timely manner, the Group arranges regular
safety courses and internal examinations for employees to
enhance their safety knowledge. Also, the Group organizes
annual physical examinations for employees to confirm their
physical health conditions to cope with the arrangements
work and thereby secure their occupational safety.
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In the production units, the Group actively takes part
in safety promotion activities, and strives to provide
employees with interesting learning and exchange
opportunities, contributing to the establishment of a safe
production community. Through various company activities
including safety literary shows, safety knowledge contests
and emergency rescue competitions, the Group instills
work safety and health-related knowledge in employees
and promotes their teamwork and interaction. Meanwhile,
the Group also enthusiastically supports the “Safety
Production Program, Hekou District 2019” and conducts a
number of publicity safety activities based on the theme of
the safety month — “Prevent Accidents, Remove Potential
Risks, Curb Incidents”, such as designing notice boards
that disseminate site safety information and arranging
investigation activities to spot potential dangers in the
workplace, such that it incorporates the concept of
people-oriented and safe production into the community.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t E2EBEHRA T
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Photos 1 Safety knowledge contest organized
in Dongguang premise

B ERCHEE RN L2 NBHE

Photos 2 & 3 Safety literary shows held in Dongguang premise

[ 2 M3 R LS Bl ) % 2 CE R R

Photos 4 & 5 Investigation activities to spot potential dangers conducted in Dongguang premise
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Promoting Automated Production

The Group consistently reinforces production safety
management, gradually embedding advanced automation
technology in part of the production processes. This not
only ensures the safety of employees, but also improves
production efficiency. Taking Dong’ao production unit
as an example, in addition to manual maintenance work,
the operation and monitoring of the entire production
process have been fully automated, which is able to detect
any mechanical failure in a timely and effective manner.
As automated manufacturing has become the current
production development trend, the Group will continue to
promote automated production at all the production units to
boost the overall market strength of Tsaker Chemicals.

Equipped with Safety Facilities

In terms of hardware, Tsaker Chemicals ensures that all
production units possess comprehensive and advanced
safety facilities. Apart from installing protective nets and
shields in all rotating equipment, the Group has also added
an emergency shutdown system for safety instruments
in the distributed control system, thereby effectively
minimizing the occupational risk of employees.

According to the level of potential risks, the production
unit is divided into different areas by color, accompanied
by clear and visible safety guidelines and signages at
conspicuous locations of the plant. This aims to remind
employees to stay alert and wear appropriate personal
protective equipment such as goggles and gloves.

Besides, the Group also collaborates with the local fire
brigade. In addition to ensuring that each production unit
has adequate firefighting equipment and escape routes in
accordance with local fire protection requirements, it also
conducts regular fire drills and fire protection competitions
to enhance staff's response-ability and address potential
risks. In compliance with local safety requirements, the
Group has also set up emergency pools in each plant to
effectively and quickly curb the spread of the fire when
necessary.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A 7
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With sound safety initiatives, the Group did not have any BERONELEEE  AEERFEHBIL
cases of work-related deaths during the Reporting Period, EAMEIEMRCHER  BRTZEAT
attaining the goal of zero-work fatalities. FRTHER -

Photos 6 & 7 Fire protection competition
organized in Dongguang premise
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Photos 8 & 9 Fire drill held in Dongguang premise

B8 MR BB EITHNERE

L

O
. \\)\
59

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE#R&E

£



5.2.

Environmental Protection

Tsaker Chemical believes that reducing the environmental
impact of production and operation is one way to realize
the Group’s promise of committing to professionalism.
The Group not only stops at complying with environmental
laws and regulations, but also actively integrates green
technology into the production process so as to achieve
responsible production goals of reducing emissions and
utilizing resources well.

Environmental Policy

With an aim to further strengthen the environmental
performance management of business operations and
reduce the impacts of the operations on natural resources,
the Group has obtained certification of the 1ISO14001:
2015 Environmental Management System, and formulated
environmental policies in accordance with the international
standards, elucidating the Group’s relevant policies and
measures to promote sustainable development:

o All employees strictly comply with all applicable
national environmental laws and regulations;

° The Group sets out and implements operational
guidance in accordance with the international
standards;

o S&E department regularly attends the
announcement seminars of the local government
and implements corresponding measures in
response to policy updates;

° Environmental audit team assists in collecting
relevant data to arrange improvement and follow-up
work;

° The Group explores feasible green technologies to
reduce environmental impacts during operations;
and

. S&E department regularly provides environmental

training to employees to enhance their
environmental awareness in daily work.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A 7
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group has identified the main environmental
footprints of its daily operations, namely air pollutant
emissions, energy use, greenhouse gas emissions, water
consumption, wastewater discharge, hazardous and
non-hazardous waste generation.

Management of Air Pollutant Emissions

The daily operation of Tsaker Chemical includes the
coal-fired boilers of Dongguang premise and the natural
gas boilers of various premise. The main air pollutants
refer to nitrogen oxide (“NOx”), sulfur oxide (“SOx") and
particulate matters (“PM”). In this regard, the Group pays
close attention to the impacts of its production processes
on neighboring environment and the health of employees.

The Group has formulated guidelines for coal procurement,
stipulating that the related premises shall purchase
low-sulfur and relatively clean coal as fuel of boilers.
Each production plant is equipped with facilities for
denitrification, desulfurization and dust removal, effectively
removing nearly 90% of air pollutants in emitted smoke.
The plant has also set up real-time smoke and air quality
monitoring appliances to sample the exhaust gas every
half an hour and thus control the emitted air pollutants at a
level far below the emission standards.

In order to further establish the principle of “green
production”, the Group continues to promote the use
of clean energy in daily production. In Dong’ao and
Dongguang premises, coal has been successively
replaced with two cleaner energy sources, namely natural
gas and purchased steam production plants, greatly
reducing the emission of air pollutants.
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During the Reporting Period, Cangzhou premise’s coal-fired
boilers have implemented ultra-low emissions retrofit
project and strengthened smoke plume management,
as a means to meet the requirements of the local
“Three-year Action Plan for Coal-fired Boiler Control”.
Besides, Dongguang premise has phased out the 20-tonne
coal-fired boiler. Due to the Group’s consistent endeavors
to reduce emissions, the emission intensities of NOx, SOx
and PM during the Reporting Period were remarkably cut
down by more than 65% as compared to the same period
last year. Tsaker Chemical will continue to explore feasible
emission reduction measures to further reduce the impacts
on the environment.
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Air Pollutant Emissions BER B 2019 2018
NOx emissions (tonnes) RA(tYBERT (48) 37 113
NOx emissions intensity RAWBERERE

(NOx emissions/ (mEftmsEm/

M’ RMB Revenue) BBARBIRA) 0.020 0.075
SOx emissions (tonnes) b BER (HR) 24 107
SOx emissions intensity malYBEEE

(SOx emissions/M’ RMB Revenue) (et /

BBEAREEAN) 0.013 0.071
PM emissions (tonnes) SER D HE L (R 6 17
PM emissions intensity R BEE E

(PM emissions/M’ RMB Revenue) (BERL R/

BEBAREEA) 0.003 0.011
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Improving Energy Efficiency and Reducing Carbon Emissions

The Group’s energy use mainly stems from electricity,
natural gas, coal and purchased steam. As energy
consumption is closely related to GHG emissions and
global climate change, Tsaker Chemical has been scaling
up efforts to implement energy saving and emission
reduction initiatives so as to minimize the environmental
impacts caused by the business, and to diminish the
production costs as well. With formulation of guidelines for
management of electricity consumption, the Group set out
the best energy-saving practices for employees at work.
Some measures include:

o Arrange power-consuming equipment for centralized
production to reduce electricity use per production
unit;

° Gradually replace older devices with efficient energy

saving facilities;

° Inspect and repair machines on a regular basis to
ensure its proper operation;

° Adjust operating hours of machinery and prohibit
idling equipment;

o Report electricity consumption to the environmental
audit team every month; and

° Encourage all departments to propose new
suggestions for improving energy efficiency.
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®
2 =N
RIE - HERERRSE
L ]
The Group has always been committed to improving energy AEB—ERNIESEN  FFHAEZE
efficiency, and implements corresponding environmental YEH FB 3 FE BV IR IR TG BE -
protection measures at each premise every year:
Premise Measure Result
Hity #iE B3
Dongguang factory At the end of 2018, 2 coal boilers with the Compared to the previous reporting period, the
capacity of 20 tonnes were replaced by energy efficiency per tonne of carbon dioxide
natural gas boilers, enabling the Group to equivalent is increased by 6%; and the carbon
move towards cleaner production dioxide equivalent per MWh is reduced by 5%
RABE E2018F KR - MM A20MEKMEARARS BRI —®REH  BHE_SRESHOEIREAT
1B REEEMEBERNEE 6% : MEIKREH Ak E SR T5%
Cangzhou factory Self-produced steam to alleviate the reliance  Generated a total of 135,446 tonnes of steam,
on purchased energy and environmental which in turn reduced 42 tonnes of carbon
impacts dioxide equivalent
BINEE BEXRT  ROINBRIRNKBIAREIRSER  HEL135 44605 R - B L2E_ALHREE
=2
E
Integrated air compressors for enhancement A reduction in approximately 11% of annual
of energy utilization rate electricity consumption compared to the original
model
BRI HRREBSFOBHE NI %N FERE
Dong’ao factory 15 street lights have installed solar panels, Save about 16,000 kWh of electricity annually
and added inverters in some motors to make
good use of renewable energy
RAKE 158 BBNREREAGRER  UENDERMNE SFAEHEL16,000%F
gﬁﬁg L/\iﬁﬁjﬁiﬁb/
In addition, the Group’s R&D Centre particularly selected Britb 240 REBRFE PO IFHIE A%
glass wall fagade for indoor windows in order to make WIKE - SEZRDNBEARN - LASseBEA
full use of natural light. Conventional lighting fixtures BMRESRARS  BERESE -
were replaced with energy-saving lamps to cut down on
electricity consumption.
(Y ®
) )
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During the Reporting Period, the changes in the Group’s EREHA - AEBEMERERSANE
energy usage situation were as follows: N

Premise Energy usage profile

Eith BE R AR

Dongguang and Cangzhou factories Since 2 of the 4 coal boilers supporting the plant's

energy supply have been converted to natural gas
boilers, the amount of coal used has decreased, while
the amount of natural gas has increased. In addition,
part of the Group's heating equipment reuses water
resources from production plants. This measure can
save 1,000 cubic meters of steam each year

RAERMBE HREZEHERREENIGERRBIEES  G26HED
HERRARME - FTUAEAERD - MAARKNA S
e pAh - MEERREIERERPMAGEHKER 1t
BIEGFAIEIF1,0003 FREA

Dong'ao factory Increased use of purchased steam and reduced use of
natural gas
RERE E e RSN FIR A E A RAR
e
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wE

As the Group proactively manages energy use during ARASLBENREABGRERERER -
the Reporting Period, the total energy use intensity has EitgeRERERnERAFRBELE TE
dropped by 25% compared to the same period last year. 25% o AmE M EE KEEAE RIS

During the Reporting Period, direct and indirect GHG
emission intensities have decreased by 41% and 25%
respectively compared to the same period last year. BRI

W*}'L

Tsaker Chemical will remain committed to working closely
with various production bases to adopt more low-carbon

equipment and technologies.

WEEREFRPD AR 41%F125% © %
LB EERSEERIMBZAE ER
& R Bl o

Energy Consumption RER 2 2019 2018
Electricity Consumption (MWh) REE(J Eﬁﬁﬁ) 44,123 49,223
Energy Intensity of Electricity RENERTE
Consumption (energy consumption/M’ RMB Revenue) (gEIR FHE/
BEARBKA) 24 32
Coal Consumption (tonnes) Bk FAE (HE) 44,552 72,502
Energy Consumption of Coal (MWh) B AELIRAE OKRE) 244,126 397,282
Energy Intensity of Coal BIREREEREE
Consumption (energy consumption/M’ RMB Revenue) (seRA=E/
BEBAREKA) 134 262
Natural Gas Consumption ('000 m?) KARAE (FILAK) 14,593 14,712
Energy Consumption of Natural Gas (MWh) RARKBLIRAE (JEELE) 157,813 159,099
Energy Intensity of Natural Gas Consumption RARFEROEREE
(energy consumption/M’ RMB Revenue) (eRAZE/
BBARBKA) 87 105
Steam Consumption (tonnes) FEAAE (ME) 139,437 25,576
Energy Consumption of Steam (MWh) A REAE KER) 108,277 19,860
Energy Intensity of Steam EAERANEREE
Consumption (energy consumption/M’ RMB Revenue) é‘éﬁﬁﬁ%/
BARKIKA) 60 13
Total Energy Consumption (MWh) ?év%'\’ﬁ RAE (JERE) 554,338 625,464
Energy Intensity REREE
(total energy consumption/M’ RMB Revenue) (ReelREE
BEAREKRA) 305 412

M
) )
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RIR - 4 ERERHRE

GHG Emissions BERBHEN 2019 2018
Direct GHG Emission (tCO,e) HEERBRERBYMN
(SR EE) 102,693 147,582 Hote 1
Direct GHG Emission Intensity BRRAERBHNEE
(direct GHG emission/M’ RMB Revenue) (ERBREREBHER/
BEARBKA) 56 Q7 —Note 1
Indirect GHG Emission (tCO,e) A EREEN
(SR E ) 32,045 35,709
Indirect GHG Emission Intensity MR ERBHERTE
(indirect GHG emission/M’ RMB Revenue) (BER=ERE R/
HEARERA) 18 24
Total GHG Emission (tCO,e) BRERETEN
(oS kg E) 134,738 183,291
GHG Emission Intensity BERBHENEE
(total GHG emission/M’ RMB Revenue) (R Z=REEHN/
BEAREBERA) 74 121
Note : The direct GHG emissions in 2018 had been adjusted in = 2018FERBERBHANED KRR

alignment with the calculation method adopted in 2019.
Relevant data are calculated with reference to Guides
for Accounting and Reporting of Carbon Dioxide
Emissions of Beijing Enterprises (Units) (2017 Edition).
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Water Saving and Wastewater Treatment

Water is one of the precious natural resources. In view of
this, the Group has formulated guidelines for water use,
and strives to reduce water consumption at all stages
of operation to ensure that water resources are utilized
properly. Water conservation initiatives include:

Set up rainwater collection systems for water
consumption in the production system;

Regularly arrange inspections by qualified
maintenance technicians to guarantee no overflow
or leakage of machines and water pipes;

Treat water that is used for premise cleaning with
the use of wastewater treatment facility before
discharge as it is easily contaminated by chemicals;

Monthly report on water usage to the environmental
audit team;

Use condensate evaporated from some
manufacturing units as water for cleaning to reduce
the use of tap water; and

Actively organize water conservation activities for
employees to raise their environmental awareness.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t E2EBEHRA T
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

As the water supply was mainly provided by the relevant
departments of the municipal government, the Group did
not encounter any problems in water supply during the
Reporting Period. Mainly due to reduction in production at
premises, water intensity during the Reporting Period has
decreased by 52% compared to the same period last year.
In the meantime, the Group will continue to explore other
practical measures to conserve water resources.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

RAKEERMBAEBEPIRE - FAUE
SERBERRNL LA EKREETEEE
EAIFEE - ABEHREORAKEEREFR
R A52% » TEREABEMAVRELHE
BRI AEERKERREMEHAKX
HRI{TEE -

Water Consumption Ak 2019 2018
Water Consumption (m?) FKE (ZZHXK) 955,810 1,654,323
Water Intensity

(water consumption/ RkEmE OKAE/

M’ RMB Revenue) AEAREEA) 526 1,091

In addition, the Group’s production units are equipped
with rainwater storage facilities to actualize the concept of
sustainable water management. The collected rainwater
and surface water directly enter the rainwater and
wastewater diversion facilities in the premise, and then are
processed immediately for uses in industrial cooling and
premise irrigation. During the Reporting Period, the Group
reused a total of 63,424 cubic meters of water, which
reduced the overall water consumption of the Group by
6.2%.

There are two major types of wastewater discharged by the
Group, namely industrial sewage and domestic wastewater.
As a responsible chemical manufacturer, Tsaker Chemical
takes into account the impacts of wastewater from
production. With wastewater discharge permits approved
by the local government, the Group ensures that each
premise is equipped with wastewater treatment facilities
for different kinds of chemicals and that the discharged
wastewater complies with and even beyond local discharge

Britb 2 o - A& EE M R A K
EERH NBEBKERNAIHETER
2o TSR R RKEEEAEDA
WS D MBI TR - REMRT
ELAREMNER A - RREHR - K
E@A L ER63,4247 T KHIK - BEBE
B2 D FA7K6.2% o

REBMRYPRNBEKRKEIED BME - D52
TREKRERSK ERARENLSER
HER  FERICBERBLEMSIBE5KY
& o FBBIMEH T BUT R A KK PERET A
& AREEFRRENBREDEESTH TR
LB MmN RE KRR - I B AT HEIEY BE
R EBE B RUSE -

standards.
Wastewater BEK 2019 2018
Wastewater Quantity (m?) BEKE (32 75K) 483,053 689,954
N
N
N
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Waste Management

Tsaker Chemical is dedicated to improving waste
management and enhancing resource efficiency. In daily
operations, the waste generated by the Group mainly
involves industrial waste, hazardous waste and domestic
waste. In order to continuously optimize waste reduction
management and invest in more environmentally friendly
production practices, the Group has adhered to the
principle of “utilizing resources wisely and reducing waste
at source”.

Hazardous Waste

As a chemical manufacturer, the Group’s daily operations
inevitably produce hazardous waste such as industrial
waste oil, sludge and coal cinder. Therefore, Tsaker
Chemical emphasizes proper supervision and treatment
of these waste in order to protect the nearby ecological
environment and hence lower the risk of industrial
accidents.

With the purpose of effectively alleviating the amount of
oil for maintenance of machinery, Dongguang premise
has increased the frequency of inspections on operating
devices to ensure its normal and efficient operation, and to
reduce the generation of waste oil. In addition, the Group
also collects and recycles cinders from burning coal,
which are subsequently used as industrial raw materials
to fully realize the concepts of resource conservation and
recycling.

In accordance with legal requirements, the Group
divides designated areas at each production unit,
setting up waterproof storage warehouses for hazardous
and dangerous waste, in order to effectively separate
hazardous waste and employees in the workplace. In
addition to commissioning qualified contractors and
hazardous waste treatment companies to collect and
dispose of hazardous waste, the Group has also newly
installed waste reduction devices at the Dong'ao plant.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A 7
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Non-hazardous Waste

Non-hazardous waste generated by the Group includes
domestic waste, canteen food waste, office waste paper,
packaging boxes, scrap iron, waste plastic and waste
trays. The Group actively implements rigorous waste
segregation, and recycles packaging and general waste
such as paper, wood, metal and plastic. This is not only
to achieve waste reduction at source by avoiding mixing
of recyclable and contamination of materials, but also
to promote the use of renewable resources and drive
the development of the recycling industry. The premises
also use durable supporting equipment for transporting
products so that waste generation can be reduced.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BEERY

AEBMEANBEEREYBREER -
RERR WMAZER BE2 B B
PRAMERERS - AEBERGEERENE
BYOE - LEWER - AW - 2B RER
FRER R - EBURERE - BRE
WELREBERD NS RORE - XATE
EBLEERMA - HEHEREER - EHTT
KAMANERKMEAETIR  LURDESR
YIHESE °

Waste BEZEY) 2019 2018
Hazardous Waste Produced (tonnes) EEENAEEEY (M) 361 4050 Noe2
Non-hazardous Waste Produced (tonnes) EELEZEZEY (1) 7,635 =Note 3 1,820
Non-hazardous Waste Recycled (tonnes) BRI rEEEZEY) (1) 7,307 =Note s { 5543=Note 2
Non-hazardous Waste Percentage mEBEZYIOKRBE DL 96% 85%
Hazardous Waste Disposal Intensity EEEEVMREETE
(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue) (EEYEBEE/
BBAREEAN) 0.20 0.27
Non-hazardous Waste Disposal Intensity MEBEVESERE
(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue) (EEhass/
BBEAREEA) 0.18 0.18
Note 2: The coal cinder has been classified as non-hazardous Hd= EAECREEADRNMNEEZEEY
waste recycled, so the relevant data have been WEMEIEAFARE -
adjusted.
Note 3: The Reporting Period is the first year collecting the Hd= AMEHEAEFRERERMEKE -

amount of recycled coal ash, so the amounts of
non-hazardous waste produced and recycled have

increased.
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5.3.

The Group noticed that the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated during the Reporting Period has increased
significantly compared with the previous year, mainly
because the waste data collection mechanism has been
improved during the Reporting Period, and the amounts
of recycled recovered cinder and coal ash have been
calculated. During the Reporting Period, the Group is
committed to leading employees to make good use of
resources and strengthening waste management. As a
result, the Group has made progress in waste performance
and the recycling rate of non-hazardous waste has risen
by 13%. Meanwhile, the hazardous waste disposal intensity
also dropped by 26%, whereas the non-hazardous waste
disposal intensity remained unchanged The Group will
continuously seek feasible waste reduction and recycling
solutions and shoulder corporate responsibility for
protecting the environment.

Selection of Packaging Materials

In addition to reducing the environmental footprint caused
by production, Tsaker Chemical also places emphasis on
the environmental and safety performance of its product
packaging. When deciding on the packaging materials
of products, the Group not only focuses on meeting the
requirements of customers and the industry, but also
prefers to use sturdy materials that prevent leakage of
chemical product and maintain product quality.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Dongguang premise mainly uses paper-based materials,
plastics, wood and rattan as packaging materials.
Additionally, the Group promotes the use of reusable
packaging materials for short-distance transportation
within the premise. For example, the production units
reused 1,289 recycling bins during the Reporting Period
to carry its chemical product, DMAS, thereby avoiding
wastage of resources as well as waste generation. Due
to the arrangement of reducing production at premises,
accompanied by effective resource management
measures, the non- recycled and non-reused packaging
materials used during the Reporting Period have decreased
by 62% as compared to the previous Reporting Period.
Yet, the Group will continue to try implementing measures
to reduce the use of packaging materials.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

RAEERFETRERAEEMH - 28
AMAMBIEREMFL - I REBIRIEMN
AERERNSEME - HEFKEANEE
BERMNER - fINBERBREHANER
1,289 @Y #s - EHE(LEEMRDMAS -
KmEeERRE  WHIBEMESL -
HEWMRELZS  YRABRNEREESE
B WARHE SR IE L R FEE R H B
HEER L —REHRL62% - BIEML -
AEENTSHEEARTERROERAEER
RO 845 o

Packaging Material BEME 2019 2018
Total Packaging Material (tonnes) BEMEIEE (M) 892 2,021
Amount of Recycled and = K B R #Y
Reused Package Material (tonnes) BEMEEE (M) 48 178
Recycled and Reused Percentage B RERED T 5% 9%
Non-recycled and Non-reused Packaging FEEIU R IEE AR EM R E
material intensity (PEMBAZ/
(packaging material consumption/ BEAREIEA)
M’ RMB Revenue) 0.46 1.22
N
‘\\\7 ( \



6.1.

PEOPLE-ORIENTED OPERATION

A professional and enthusiastic team is the foundation of
Tsaker Chemical’s success. The Group has been devoted
to building a caring and inclusive working environment
for its employees, and to demonstrating its people-centric
commitment. By nurturing more talents, protecting
the well-being, physical and mental development of
employees, the Group aspires to satisfy the staff's
expectations in shaping an ideal and colorful working
environment. The Group also promises to spread care to
the community as a whole.

Employment and Labor Policies

The endeavors of employees are the key to success and
mobilizing the sustainable operation of the Group. In this
regard, the Group strives to ensure that all employees are
treated fairly and respectfully in the workplace. The Group
regularly reviews existing recruitment policy and promotion
mechanism in order to maintain the competitiveness of
Tsaker Chemical in the industry.

The Group has appointed the Human Resources (“HR”)
department and heads of various departments to conduct
an objective evaluation on performance of each employee,
and then adjust remuneration packages based on their
performance and work experience. The Group is also
committed to establishing a harmonious, inclusive and
respectful working environment, prohibiting any forms of
discriminatory acts, and providing equal opportunities for
employees and candidates.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT
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RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Number of % of
Employees Employees
EEA" EEES K
Employee Category EEER 2019 2019
Male B 1,020 75%
Female Z 344 25%
Management IR fE 166 12%
Senior FE 126 9%
Junior MZET 1,072 79%
18-30 years old 18-307% 179 13%
31-50 years old 31-50%% 1,093 80%
51 years old 518k A E
or above 92 7%
Beijing bl 60 4%
Hebei e 1,128 83%
Shandong e 163 12%
Others H 13 1%
Turnover Rate mAER 2019

Overall employee turnover rate of the Group AEBEEE TRAX

119 EFNote 4

Note 4:The employees’ turnover during the Reporting Period
include retired staff.

The employment data above includes Tsaker Technology,
the Dongguang production plants (Hebei Tsaker (dye
intermediates manufacturing plant) and Tsaker Cangzhou)
and the Dong’ao production plant only.

In addition to actively nurturing an excellent team, the
Group also pursues efforts to retain its top talents and work
towards a brighter future with Tsaker Chemical. Hence,
the HR department is responsible for the management of
talents, and endeavors to keep the turnover rate at a similar
level or even lower to maintain normal daily operations.
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The Group’s employment and labor policies strictly comply
with relevant laws and regulations, resolutely curbing
the use of child and forced labor. Meanwhile, it ensures
that labor practices along the Group’s supply chain
respect human rights as well. The Group has appointed
the HR department to implement relevant labor policies
and procedures, such as requiring applicants to provide
valid identification documents as to ensure they can be
legally hired. In case of misuse of child labor, the Group
will immediately terminate the employment contract and
assist him/her in returning to school. Before his/her formal
adulthood, the Group is willing to accept his/her adult
relatives to replace the jobs as a way to provide financial
assistance.

In addition, if it is known that the child laborer is sick or
injured when the contract is being terminated, the Group
will arrange for it to go to a qualified medical institution
for treatment promptly, and promise to be responsible for
all medical expenses and living expenses during medical
treatment.

The Group also attaches great importance to work-life
balance of employees to ensure that employees
enjoy a reasonable number of working hours. For any
forced labor-related behaviors, the HR department will
immediately terminate employment and make appropriate
compensation to the relevant employees. Hinging on
ethical employment practices, the Group was not aware
of any cases involving child or forced labor during the
Reporting Period.

Emphasis on Talent Development

Through providing diversified and ample training and
development opportunities, Tsaker Chemical devotes itself
to assisting employees in discovering their talents and
achieving their work ambitions, growing together with the
Group to promote steady development of business. From
induction and safety awareness training to environmental
technology and specialized operations of chemical
production units, the Group arranges a wide range of
learning opportunities for employees to increase their
knowledge and skills.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A 7
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group adheres to the principle of “demand-based
training” and has appointed the HR department to conduct
a survey comprehensively assessing staff training needs at
the end of the year. In support of continuous improvement
of the overall professional level, the HR department
evaluates and updates the training contents of each
department and employees. Besides, awareness of S&E is
expected to be gradually incorporated into daily production
work of employees.

In an effort to more effectively cultivate talents and create
the workplace of mutual assistance and learning, the Group
actively invests resources in internal talent cultivation. With
the implementation of mentoring mechanism, experienced
employees are arranged to guide new joiners, patiently
explaining their daily duties to help them better adapt to
the new working environment. Moreover, the Group also
rolls out an “In-house Lecturer” program, inviting senior
employees to share valuable work experience and essential
knowledge in the industry, thereby fostering communication
and knowledge exchange among colleagues.
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Topics B 37
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Male = 29
Female Z 22
Average Training
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Management BIEE 2
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Business Integrity

Adherence to business ethics is one of the integral
components of the Group’'s commitment to professionalism.
The Group has clearly elucidated in the employee
handbook that it adopts zero-tolerance attitude towards
any corruption and bribery behaviors. Employees must
abide by the relevant business ethics standards at work
and avoid any conflict of interest. To strengthen employees’
anti-corruption awareness and professional ethics, the
Group has provided relevant training during the Reporting
Period to secure the interests of the Company.

The Group has also established a reporting mechanism
for employees to report or complain about any illegal
acts that are suspected of fraud, bribery or money
laundering. the Group
shall promptly refer to the internal audit department and

If a suspicious case is received,

the HR department. All investigations and follow-up work
shall be conducted confidentially to protect the reporter. If
the case is substantiated, the Group may call the relevant
persons involved into account via legal channels and take
appropriate sanctions. During the Reporting Period, the
Group ensured that it upheld standards of transparency
and integrity in business ethics and thus, no cases of
corruption were found.

Building a Harmonious Working Environment

Tsaker Chemical believes that caring for the well-being of
employees can effectively unite the power of employees,
and improve their sense of belonging to the Company.
The Group’s mission is to create an ideal and harmonious
workplace that adds color and values to the community.
In this regard, the Group offers a wide variety of
team-building activities and measures that benefit the
physical and mental health of employees to promote closer
communication among them.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A 7

6.3.

6.4.

. Environment, Social and Governance Report

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

RR2RE
BREEEBERASERTEENZOLLE
Z2— AEEERETIFMERE  Hi
AMESEBEBRITA—EENERREE
BITTHE EMNBEBTEREBEREE -
AR R EAFEERNBEN - BNEET

MRESEHLRERERET AKEERHmE
IR AR - (RIE R B A -

AEBETERIBHHE HETHRENK
AMEMIRE S RRFE - R - MEMORTT
o IMREERAREN - AEBFHER
HABRIEANERAREE - —AERIE
ETERRTET  URER®RE - MEH
BE AEESEReRBEREERMEEY
RALTER  WRBCEERD - ARERRK
SHERRASRSERRFEZNAEER
RE ARSI REEREABEHFEISHE
o

BENEIERR
FEREBRE  BEEIBLEERREE

IHE RetfMERFNEEX A~EE
N BRRMBEROIIERERCHE -
REREFEEINEE - it - AEERT
EBHEBEI AR ONERERGESHRE
M REE T 2 BERREHE -



Environment, Social and Governance Report

Healthy Environment

The Group endeavors to create a healthy working
environment, maintaining employees’ strength in building
a sustainable future together with Tsaker Chemical. The
Group starts with the staff's diet and proactively prepares
nutritious and delicious meals for employees by purchasing
fresh and quarantine ingredients.

In addition, the Group also provides bicycles to employees
at all premises, encouraging them to do cycling instead
of walking, which not only improves their physical fitness,
but also effectively reduces the fuel and carbon emissions
incurred by vehicles. Tsaker Chemical also places great
importance on the psychological and mental health of
employees. During the Reporting Period, the Group
deepened the staff's understanding of mental health
management by organizing staff mental health counseling
sessions.

The Group has set up sports fields at each production
unit, so that employees can make good use of sports
facilities to relax their bodies and minds. The Group also
regularly hosts different sports competitions, such as the
International Women’s Day women'’s tug-of-war match, and
staff sports contests.
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Team Building Activities

Apart from the annual safety literary shows and employee
sports games, the Group also strives to organize a broad
array of employees’ team building activities, including
“China Dream, Labor Beauty” employee recitations, singing
competitions, speech contests, classic opera concerts,
readings and movie sharing sessions. These events
are designed to help employees develop their personal
interests, adding colors to their work and daily lives, and
having joyful time together.
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Photo 10 Mental health counseling
for employees held in Cangzhou premise
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Photo 11 Women'’s Tug-of-war
Match organized in Dongguang premise
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On account of the full support and active participation
of employees from various departments, the Group was
enabled to successfully organize the aforementioned
activities during the Reporting Period, re-establishing
Tsaker Chemical’s commitment to focusing on the physical
and mental health of employees, and treating the factory
as their home.
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Photo 12 14" Employees Sports
Game hosted by the Group

B2V ESEBRRNE+NERTESS

Photo 13 Annual Summary and
Commendation Conference held by the Group

B3V ERERRNFERBRTAS

BREMABRINEAXIHRERSE - K
SEEANREHRIENBERA RS - 5
REIFEBHIBETHOERE - UM
REH D FEAGE



6.5.

7.
(="
\\7 /} ) /

Caring for Community

In building a more colorful living environment, Tsaker
Chemical is committed to bringing care to different corners
of the community. In this regard, the Group pursue efforts
to support diversified development of youth to nurture more
social leaders. The Group consistently collaborate with
Tianjin University, and has invested a total of RMB300,000
and entrusted the institution to conduct scientific research
on environmentally friendly products. This initiative shall
help to drive social innovation. Additionally, the Group also
sponsors the assistant teaching works of Yifu Elementary
School in Lianzhen Dongguan in order to nurture the next
generations.

Meanwhile, the Group also cares for the underprivileged.
During the Reporting Period, the Dongguang Federation
of Trade Unions organized charity events called “One
Day Donation for Employees’ Mutual Aid”, and assistance
and condolences for provincial employees who are in
difficulties, which raised RMB42,500 as relief funds to
offer help to employees and their families with long-term
diseases.

LOOKING FORWARD

Looking to the future, Tsaker Chemical will remain
committed to its mission, and adhere to the corporate
philosophy of “to build a better world with green
technology”. To further improve operating efficiency and
reduce environmental footprint, the Group endeavors to
consistently provide customers with high-quality innovative
products and services, and to explore safer and more
eco-friendly production strategies. In the meantime, the
Group will continue to ensure that the Group’s business
is aligned with integrity, and will actively invest resources
in community services. The Group aspires to promote
corporate social responsibility and lead Tsaker Chemical
and the entire society to add colors and values.

| Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A 7
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 8.
INDEX
Aspect KPI Description

Em BRENES Ml
SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT
A1: EMISSIONS

BEA1 : BB

A1 General Information on:
disclosure (a) the policies; and

—MBE () BE R
(b)  compliance
(b)  BEEEMER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

e R AR R EOR -

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RERBAEENE (N E) & (1EA)
BE(WAGESEN - BEREE) -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FESAEEEYDES (BERTE) & (10
WA BE (MG ESEM - §IARMET
#)o

Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FREABREEEYES (LAEGE) & (11
BR)BE (WMABESEM - BIERM

) o
Ean

L J

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BRC(RE - HEgREBREESD
%5

Statement/Section
B EMH
ARE

(a) 5.2 Environmental Protection;

(a)  5.2BmIERME

(b) There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.

(b)  REHAREEETIEBEERE IR
Bl - MRBERABMERER B

5.2 Environmental Protection

52  RIRRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IRIER#E

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IRIERE

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IRIERE
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KPI
BREMIEE
A15

Aspect
Bm

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

it

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.
HHURRHE 2 R R FTIS R -
Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
MNEBEERBEFTEEDNTE - BIE
EESNBERASKR -

A2: USE OF RESOURCES

EEA2: ERER

A2 General

disclosure

—RBTE

A21

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited

Policies

R

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
REAESMERE R, SREEER (10
B Raoh) BE (UTETFRETHE)
REE (WAGES B - FHERMHET

&) o
Ean

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BMEEKEREE (MABESEM -
RIEETHE)

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.
R AR B RFTERR -
Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

AU SKERE AR 7KOR BRI B R
RA AR T 8 R PTISR -

=20

AR

FRICEEEARAF

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

B EMH

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 RIERE

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IRIER#E

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IREBRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IRIERE

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IRIERE

52 Environmental Protection
52 IRBRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
52 IRIER#E
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Aspect KPI Description
fEE BREARIET Wit
A2.5 Total packaging material used for

finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
X mAAABEMHNEE (UNEE) &
(WER) BEEEMERE -
A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
BEA3 : BERRAARER

A3 General Policies
disclosure B
—MR R
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts

of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
M EBRBHIRIBERRAERNEKRY
ENERREREHELENTTE -
SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B1: EMPLOYMENT

BEB1 : EfE
B1 General Information on:
disclosure (a) the policies; and
—MR B (@) HE: R
(b) compliance
(b)  HEEEEHEHR -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

RIER - BIREREY - SR Rt R B D
MR B AR -

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

B EH

5.2 Environmental Protection

52 IRERE

5.2 Environmental Protection

52 IRGRE

5.2 Environmental Protection

52 IRERE

B.it&

(a) 6.1 Employment and Labor Policies;

(a) B.UEREKBIHE

(b) There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.

(b) HEHANREEETHEERERLR
Bl - R FRBEEREREMH

6.1 Employment and Labor Policies

6.1 EERSIBR



KPI
MRAMIEE M
B1.2
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Description

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

IR - FleAERI KRB D HIEBRRE
L o

B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EmEB2: #ERZE

B2

General
disclosure

—RBKE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and
(a) BE &

(b) compliance

(b)

b HEDERONER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.
AT EBEEMBTHABRKEE -

Lost days due to work injury.
EIGHEAIIIERE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

P ER MV R R R B2 24 AR
HEHITRERETE -
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RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

BeEH

6.1

6.1

5.1
5.1

Employment and Labor Policies;
The Group only calculates overall
employee turnover rate, instead

of obtaining the data according to
employee categories. The Group will
continue to improve relevant data
collection in the future.
RERAIHR : NEEENERES
MARERE - MRERESERE S
B REBRRBEETEEFHEBK

£ o

5.1 Safety Management
SAREER

There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.
HEBHANRERE B TAEBEEENLR
Bl - MR E RE R B
Safety Management

ZEEE

The relevant data were not disclosed. The
Group will continue to improve relevant data
collection in the future.

MRBEYRERE - ARBARRSEE S
BRSEKE

5.1
5.1

Safety Management

ZEEE



Aspect
EBm

B3

KPI
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Description

MRAMRIEE M
B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
BEB3 : 3R K&

General

disclosure
—R I E

B3.1

B3.2

Policies

R

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).

RN EEER (NERERRE - B R
ERES)ASNXIEERSL -

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.
RUERIREEETIZED - BER
Ells RS SlisE e

4

m
dt
i3

\

B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
[EEB4 : & T %8|

B4

General
disclosure

—RBKEE

B4.1

B4.2

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(a) BE &
(b)  compliance
(b) MREZEENER -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

i s RSB DI R B e LA 2 B T M58
BIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
LA B IR R IR IE S JE R B B S SR £%
EXHY B o

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

L2 :

6.2
6.2

Emphasis on Talent Development
BRATIES

All employees of the Group are required to
undergo regular trainings
REE A B THEETTEREI

6.2
6.2

6.1
6.1

Emphasis on Talent Development
BRATIES

6.1 Employment and Labor Policies;
6.1EENRS TR

There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.
WS BN ARE B TR EE R
Bl WRBERBBERNEREN
Employment and Labor Policies
IR &8 TR

Employment and Labor Policies

TEfE &% THCR
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oA
L ]
Aspect KPI Description
B BREARIER Wit
B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
EmB5 : HEEERE
B5 General Policies

disclosure  BUR

—MR B R

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region.
mumE D HEREE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

B RERMERNED  MERTE
BERIEHEREE - U RBRBENHH
TRERERE-

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

[EEB6 : EmEE

B6 General Information on:

disclosure (a) the policies; and

— MR (@) HE: R
(b) compliance
(b) IHEEEHER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
EERDEXEmBEHT AR S MEREE
mmABKE B L

B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
REMNERKRBORFEE AR ES
T -

(="
\_ ] /
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RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

BeEH

4.1

4.1
4.1

4.1

4.3

4.3
4.3

Sustainable Supply Chain
Management

AIRENHERER

Sustainable Supply Chain
Management; the Group’s practices
regarding supply chain management
are applicable to its all suppliers.
ARFENHERER  NEEGHMtE
RERNBOIEBREFREHER -

4.2 Quality Control and 4.3 Fulfilling
Product Responsibility;
42mEEHI R4 3BITEREE
There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.
WERAREEETHEBAERZ NS
Bl WREHRABBERNEREN
Fulfilling Product Responsibility
Responsibility; During the Reporting
Period, there is 0% of total products
sold subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
BITEMREME : RIESR - 0%WE
EERALZHEEREHRMARIL -
Fulfilling Product Responsibility
BITEREML



Aspect
EBm

KPI
BRERIEE
B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Description

it

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

fih B R RIE A EREBANIED -
Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures.

LS SR EREREMBKIER
Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored.
i H B & ERHRE ALK - AR
BRITREER 0% -

B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EmEB7 : RES

B7

General
disclosure

— R

B7.1

B7.2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and
(a) B Rk

(b) compliance
(b)

b HEDERNER -

a

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPNHET AR EERBTER
ERBESFARMENEE RFAGR -
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored.
BT R BRI - A RABBEETT
NEEBRITE °

Statement/Section

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

Quality Control

Securing Customer Privacy

NG

6.3 Business Integrity;

There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.

REEEBTHBNERNAR
BB REREN

Business Integrity

Business Integrity

B EH

4.4

4.4  IRERNHERE

4.2

42  @EEH

4.5

45 BREEF

(a)

(a) 6.3F2#ME:

(b)

(b) HEHA
Bl - W38

6.3

6.3 2N

6.3

6.3 FR2ME

VI
‘ N/
N A
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Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section
EmE BARENER #Hl B EH

B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

[EEBS8 : HEBRE

B8 General Policies 6.5 Caring for Community
disclosure B 6.5 FHEME
—MR B R
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. 6.5 Caring for Community
education, environmental concerns, 6.5 EEME

labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIXEREE (UHE  RBEZTHE 4T
=k R XL BE) -

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or 6.5 Caring for Community
time) to the focus area. 6.5 HBEEMLRE

EEIREMHAER (MEEKER) o
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Directors and Senior Management

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors and senior management are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi (former name: GE Yuanyuan), aged 38, is an
executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman
of our Company, responsible for overall business strategy and
major business decisions of our Group. Mr. Ge joined us in
February 2007 and was promoted to vice-president and president
in December 2011 and August 2012, respectively.

Mr. Ge obtained a master’s degree in International Business
Management from Middlesex University in the United Kingdom in
February 2007 and completed studies in chemical engineering
from Tianjin University in the PRC in July 2004.

Mr. BAI Kun, aged 43, is the chief financial officer of the
Company, being responsible for the financial operations of the
Group. Mr. Bai has been an executive Director since 25 August
2016. Mr. Bai joined the Group in September 2014 as the Chief
Financial Officer. Mr. Bai is also the sole director of Tsaker Hong
Kong. His work experience includes acting as manager for the
Tianjin branch of PricewaterhouseCoopers (EEkiER K& 5HED
ERAR DT RZDAT) from September 2002 to February 2010
and the financial controller of Tianjin Walkman Biomaterial Co.,
Ltd. from February 2010 to August 2014. Mr. Bai is a Certified
Public Accountant of China. Mr. Bai obtained a master's degree
in Technoeconomics and Management in March 2002 and a
bachelor's degree in Technoeconomics in July 1999 from Tianjin
University.
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Ms. ZHANG Nan, aged 37, has been an executive Director since
10 January 2019. Ms. Zhang has been the director of human
resources and the director of strategic development of the
Group since January 2013, and is responsible for the Group’s
human resources management, industry research, development
planning and investment project research. She has been serving
as the deputy general manager of the Group since August 2018.
Her work experience includes serving as the human resources
manager of Beijing Touqu Technology Co., Ltd. (1t ZIEERIZ AR
~a]) from August 2008 to July 2010. She was a director of human
resources of Chexun Internet Co., Ltd.(BEzE RN AR A F)
from September 2010 to January 2013. Ms. Zhang graduated from
Inner Mongolia University of Finance and Economics in July 2007,
majoring in business administration.

Non-executive Director

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, aged 65, is a non-executive
Director since April 2015. He is responsible for providing
advice on corporate governance and internal control matters.
He has been a member of the advisory board of Ocean Equity
Partners Fund L.P. (the entity which controls Wider Pacific) since
September 2012. Mr. Fontaine serves as an executive director
and vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private
Equity Association. In 2000, he founded Investel Asia, a venture
capital and private equity firm and served as its managing
director from January 2004 to December 2006. He was the chief
executive officer of Newcom LLC from January 2007 to September
2008. Prior to joining our Group in April 2015, Mr. Fontaine
served various positions within the BCE Inc. group, the largest
communications company in Canada, including Bell Canada, Bell
Ardis and Tata Cellular, for approximately 16 years of his career.
Mr. Fontaine has also been acting as a non-executive director of
D&G Technology Holding Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1301) since August 2016 and as
an independent director of China Lending Corporation, a company
listed on NASDAQ (ticker: CLDC) from July 2016 to December
2017.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT
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Mr. Fontaine obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Sherbrooke in Canada in
June 1979. He has been a member of the Order of Engineers of
Québec since January 1980.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director since March 2015, being responsible for
overseeing the management of our Group independently. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Ho served as a managing director of
Munsun Asset Management (Asia) Ltd. between January 2014
and March 2015. Since November 2013, Mr. Ho became an
independent non-executive director of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 2283) and an independent non-executive
director of BBI Life Sciences Corporation (stock code: 1035) from
October 2014 onwards. From August 2015 to August 2018, Mr.
Ho became the chief financial officer and joint company secretary
of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. Mr. Ho has served as the
Investment consultant of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. since
August 2018. Mr. Ho previously worked in various international
financial institutions, such as a senior research analyst of Credit
Lyonnais Securities (Asia) Limited from September 1996 to
February 1999, and a vice president in the Research Department
of Institutional Equities, Asia Pacific Department of JP Morgan
from February 1999 to October 2004. Mr. Ho served various
positions in HSBC, such as the Head of China Value and Growth
Research in CIBM Research Asia of HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited
in September 2004, Head of China Research of HSBC (Securities
Business) Beijing Representative Office in June 2008, and Hong
Kong China equity sales director of HSBC in January 2011.

Mr. Ho received a Master of Commerce degree, specialising
in Finance from the University of New South Wales in Australia
in April 1991, and a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from the
University of Sydney in Australia in May 1988. He was awarded as
Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered Financial
Analysts in September 1998, and has been a CFA charter holder
and a member of the Association for Investment Management and
Research since January 1999.
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Mr. ZHU Lin (former name: ZHU Xiaolin), aged 46, is an

independent non-executive Director since March 2015, being
responsible for overseeing the management of our Group
independently. Mr. Zhu is also a partner of Beijing Legendhouse
CPAs (At R B#&5TAIEHFT) and a director of Beijing Run Qin
Consulting Co., Ltd. (AtFEEFEAAER2AF]). Mr. Zhu has been
a non-executive director of Beijing Chexun Internet Company
Limited (AL REBEFMEHAERMDERAR), a company whose shares
are listed on the Over the Counter Bulletin in the PRC (¥1=1R),
since July 2016. Prior to joining our Group in March 2015, Mr. Zhu
was a senior manager at the mergers and acquisitions department
of PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(Beijing Branch) (L EXEBHZMORINBR AR RS AR]) from
October 2003 to November 2005. Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Overseas Financial Accounting (&5 Z/NH B 75 & 52T
1k) from Central Institute of Finance and Banking (currently known
as Central University of Finance and Economics) in the PRC in
June 1995. Mr. Zhu has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2000.

Mr. YU Miao, aged 43, is an independent non-executive
Director since March 2015, being responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. Mr. Yu is also a partner
of Global Law Office. Mr. Yu has been a non-executive director of
Beijing Chexun Internet Company Limited (1t 7 5 3 B B 48 8% 15 5 R
‘A 7]), a company whose shares are listed on the Over the Counter
Bulletin in the PRC (¥7=1R), since July 2016. Prior to joining our
Group in March 2015, Mr. Yu was a partner of Global Law Office
from March 2006 to June 2010, and subsequently a partner of
Norton Rose (Asia) LLP from June 2010 to June 2011. Mr. Yu
returned to Global Law Office as a partner in July 2011 and has
been a partner there since then. Mr. Yu obtained a postgraduate
diploma in International Law from The University of Nottingham in
the United Kingdom in December 2001, and a bachelor's degree
in Economic Law from Heilongjiang University in the PRC in July
1999. Mr. Yu was qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in March 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of our Company. For details about Mr. Ge’s
background, see “Directors” under this section.

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, is the chief financial officer
of our Company. For details about Mr. Bai's background, see
“Directors” under this section.

Ms. ZHANG Nan has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Group with effect from 10 January 2019 and her primary
responsibilities include overseeing, monitoring and implementing
the internal controls of the Group; and ensuring the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations including the
Listing Rules. For details about Ms. Zhang’s background, see
“Directors” under this section.

Mr. SHI Qiang, aged 64, is the chief engineer of our Company,
being responsible for the strategic development of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group in April 2004, Mr. Shi worked in the
Chemical Research Institute of Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
(NELHBEARREIEIHZEER) (the “Research Institute”) from January
1986 to March 2004 and served various positions, including the
director of the design office of the Research Institute. Before that,
Mr. Shi worked at the Inner Mongolia Yellow River Construction
Bureau Share Limited Corporation (AEHER TEBRMHAERA
A]) (formerly known as “Inner Mongolia Yellow River Construction
Bureau” (RN & &A TFEA) prior to its reform in 2000), a provider
of hydropower engineering services in Inner Mongolia, the PRC,
from January 1982 to December 1985. Mr. Shi has approximately
31 years of experience in the chemical industry. Mr. Shi joined
our Group in April 2004 and has served various positions in
our Group. Mr. Shi obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemical
engineering from Tianjin University in May 1982. In August 1994,
Mr. Shi was awarded the title of “Senior Engineer” (&= T12ff) by
the Office of Leading Group for Professional Title Reform of the
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (A% & B ARBME N E4EE/
#89A=), and in October 2012, Mr. Shi was awarded the title of
“Energy Manager” (8£JRE 2EM) by the Development and Reform
Commission of Hebei Province, the PRC.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. YANG Xue, aged 31, graduated from Zhejiang University in
2014 and Qingdao University in 2011 with a Master's degree in
Engineering and Bachelor’s degree in Engineering, respectively.
Ms. Yang joined the Group in March 2016, and has been
appointed as the joint company secretary since 26 July 2018.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yang worked in the Marketing
Department of Wanhua Chemical Group Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 600309) from 2014 to 2016, focusing on
the research and analysis of the domestic and foreign chemical
markets and related industries.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥, Z{t 2 &£ B HR A A
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The Board is pleased to announce the Directors’ Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 29 October 2014. The Shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange since 3 July 2015.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of dye intermediates, agricultural chemical intermediates,
pigment intermediates and battery materials, and the provision of
environmental technology consultancy services. Analysis on the
principal business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 158 and 159 of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.092 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such final dividend is subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM, The dividend is expected to be paid on
or about 31 July 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company (the “Register of
Members”) on 26 June 2020.

Together with the Special Dividend of RMBO0.058 per share, the
dividends in aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2019 will
amount to RMBO0.150 per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” en pages 16 to 20 of this annual report for details.
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Environmental Policy and Performance

We focus on environmental, health and safety protection.
As a producer of dye intermediates, agricultural chemical
intermediates, pigment intermediates and battery materials,
and as a provider of environmental protection technology, we
have developed production processes that comply with all
applicable national and local standards in environmental, health
and safety protection in all material respects. We also believe
that implementing and maintaining advanced development in
our environmental, health and safety protection measures serve
as a competitive strength. Producers that do not meet the local
environmental, health and safety protection standards may incur
losses and fines imposed by the local government.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, we were subject to
inspections organized by the local government from time to time
and we had not been subject to any material fines or penalties
in relation to any material breach of applicable environmental,
health and safety laws or regulations that could have a material
adverse effect on our operation. For the year ended 31 December
2019, we had not lost any order from our customers due to
environmental, health and safety concerns. We believe that our
awareness of the environmental, health and safety issues and
dedication to their protection makes us a leader in this area from
an early stage.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT
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Integrating environmental protection is a part of our operating
philosophy. Our technological improvements were made with a
view towards complying with or strengthening our environmental,
health and safety protection measures. Producers that are unable
to meet the environmental, health and safety standards of the local
government and the downstream customers would incur a higher
cost for fines and remediation and might not be competitive in the
industry in the long run.

The Group has set up the “Environmental Protection Administrative
System” to implement the discharge of the duties of the person in
charge and staff of every level and every department, and confirm
the disposal treatments and standards of sewage, waste gas
and solid waste. We have also set up the “Accountability system
for Tsaker Chemical” to enhance the safety and environment
awareness of all our employees and mitigate and root out any
negligent acts, leading employees to fulfil their responsibility with
lofty professionalism and to ensure the quality of work, so that a
standardised management can be implemented.

The Group puts a lot of emphasis on corporate social
responsibilities, focusing on environmental protection, safety
and health, and continues to be committed to ensuring that
the business activities of the Group are in line with the relevant
environmental and safety supervisory requirements. We have
already obtained Quality Management System [1SO9001,
Environmental Management System ISO14001 and Occupational
Health Safety Management System GB/T 28001-2011 for our
management system.

Directors’ Report
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Compliance with related laws and regulations

The Group always places focus on strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in all material aspects, including
the non-compliance incidents as disclosed in the Prospectus,
setting up and improving the existing administrative system,
enhancing daily operation and supervision, adopting effective
measures to avoid and reduce risks and violation of rules. The
following are some of the primary laws and regulations applicable
to the Group in the PRC.

Laws on Work Safety

The Group has a comprehensive safety production management
system and detailed operation procedures in place. In addition
to the daily production safety inspection,
safety production inspection on Dongguang Production Plants,
Dongao Production Plants and Dongying Production Plant are
conducted weekly to thoroughly investigate any safety loopholes.

Control on safety production is strengthened by adopting feasible

routine comprehensive

preventive measures. We ensure to put in place various safety
production systems, measures and responsibilities as well as the
effectiveness of relevant contingency plans.

The Environmental Protection Law, the Law on the Prevention
and Treatment of Water Pollution and the Law on the
Prevention and Treatment of Solid Waste Pollution

The latest communique of the Fifth Plenary Session of the 18th
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China proposed
to enhance the effort on environmental protection as to increase
the environmental quality as the core, implementing the strictest
environmental protection system to thoroughly realise the plan of
prevention and treatment of air, water and soil contamination and
the vertical administrative system of monitoring the executability of
environmental institutions below the provincial level.

Directors’ Report
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Voluntarily abiding by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, enhancing environmental
awareness and achieving green production management is
not only the common opportunities and challenges faced by
enterprises, but also the foundation of their ongoing operations.
The Group strictly abides by the above laws and regulations and
adopts effective environmental protection measures to minimize
the impacts of our operations on the environment.

Our production facilities have already been equipped with
pollution control equipment such as monitoring equipment on
generators to control and record the gas pollutants and the
emission level of sewage and solid waste. We have also set
up a series of internal policies and plans for environmental
risks avoidance to ensure the compliance with the applicable
state, industrial and local standard laws, regulations and policy
requirements, including reports on the gas pollutants, the
emission level of sewage and solid waste and regular assessment
on such emission level to the local safety and environmental
departments (Environmental Protection Bureau of Dongguang
County, Work Safety Supervisory Bureau of Dongguang County,
Environmental Protection Bureau of Dongying Port Economic
Development Zone and Work Safety Supervisory Bureau of
Dongying Port Economic Development Zone etc.). We constantly
strengthen the development of clean production technologies to
satisfy the increasing standard of environmental protection. When
there is deviation from any applicable emission standards, we
will investigate the cause and adopt corresponding corrective
measures. Furthermore, our emission of sewage and solid waste
and air pollutants is subject to monitoring by the above-mentioned
safety and environmental departments.

The Regulations on the Control of Foreign Exchange

Gain generated from the exporting business of the Group
represents a relatively large proportion of the total revenue for
the year and is denominated and settled in USD. Along with the
constant promotion of internationalizing RMB, we do not only
closely monitor the fluctuation of foreign currency, but also strictly
comply with the regulations on the control of foreign exchange in
foreign exchange filing registration, foreign exchange settlement,
foreign exchan;ge operating activities and foreign exchange

_ investing activities.
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The Foreign Trade Law

The Group has corresponding internal export business
management system and operation procedures in place, and
promptly conducts filing registration to export department. We
engage in trade activities that are in compliance with relevant
laws and abide by the trade order. In order to maintain fair
market competition, we do not engage in improper competition
behaviours, such as selling at an improperly low price, bid-
rigging, issuing false advertisement and bribery. For exporting, the
Group also seriously studies and strictly complies with the laws
and regulations of the export destination countries, such as the
anti-dumping law in India, product liability laws and regulations in
Germany and product safety and liability laws and regulations in
the United States of America.

The Labour Law

The Group developed and improved its existing internal
management system to safeguard the rights of its employees,
including the Safety Education Training System, the Identification
and Treatment Management System for Hidden Safety Perils, and
Management Regulations on On-site Sanitation and Cleaning. The
Group stringently implements national protocols and standards on
labour safety and health and conducts labour safety and health
education for workers to prevent labour accidents and reduce
occupational hazards.

Social Insurance and Housing Provident Funds

The Group complied with the PRC laws, rules and regulations,
including the Social Insurance Law, the Regulations on
Unemployment Insurance, the Regulations on Work Injury
Insurance and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Fund. We make contributions to social insurance in
full and on time including pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance as well as housing provident fund. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group did not receive any penalty from
the relevant administrative department.
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In light of, including but not limited to, the above-mentioned
primary laws and regulations, our internal control department is
responsible for monitoring from time to time our compliance with
and abidance by the applicable laws and regulations and other
relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as supervising the
implementation of necessary measures. In addition, we plan to
provide our Directors, senior management and employees with
continuing training development programs and updates regarding
the relevant PRC laws and regulations on a regular basis to
proactively identify any concerns and issues relating to potential
non-compliance in order to reduce the Group’s risk of deviating
from them.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships
with our major customers, established a strong customer base
and have become the key supplier to our major customers.
We have passed a number of stringent qualification and
certification processes required by our customers to establish
our stable customer base. We have had relationships with our
major customers for over ten years. We believe that these long-
term relationships enable us to establish and maintain market
leadership in the dye and pigment intermediates industry.

During the Review Year, we attended industry conferences to
solicit new potential customers and maintain relationships with
existing customers. To further enhance our business relationship
with our customers, our sales team visited our major customers
from time to time to conduct customer surveys to understand
their evolving needs and obtained feedback on the quality of our
products. We are dedicated to providing quality customer services
and after-sales services. We endeavour to supply our products to
our customers in a timely manner.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically on a
monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and specifications
of the products to be purchased, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, we were able to obtain
raw materials from our suppliers on terms and quality acceptable
to us and we had not experienced any material disruption to
the supply of any raw materials required for our production
or experienced any difficulty in sourcing alternative suppliers
for such raw materials. In addition, we believe the relationship
between us and our major suppliers has been and will continue to
be good and stable. All of our domestic procurements were paid
in RMB. All of our foreign procurements were paid in USD.

Employees: In addition to competitive salaries, we provide
employees with supplementary compensation benefits, such as
free shift dormitories, free shuttle bus transportation, and meal
allowance. In addition, we value our employees and provide them
with continuing education, on the-job training and encourage their
career development through accumulating on-the-job experience.
For the employees of our subsidiaries that operate in the PRC,
we are required to make contributions to various government
sponsored employee benefit funds, including social insurance
fund, basic pension insurance fund and unemployment, maternity
and work-related insurance funds in accordance with applicable
PRC laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there have been no labour
disputes or strikes at any of our production facilities. Our current
relationship with our employees and the labour unions are good
and are based on mutual support and respect.

RISK FACTORS

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses,
financial conditions, operational results or growth prospects,
leading to a divergence from the expected or historical results.
Key risk factors affecting the Group are outlined below. In
dealing with these risk factors, the Group keeps in touch with our
stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.
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Global economy and macroeconomic conditions

Any adverse change in the global economic downturn, geopolitical
tensions, the PRC’s economic, political and social conditions,
as well as governmental policies may affect our sales, which will
result in pressure on the prices, volume and margins achieved or
achievable in the future. A decline in demand or a shift to lower
value end products with a lower demand for our products resulting
from deteriorating economic condition may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In this regard, the Group will actively gain understanding of the
changes in domestic and overseas markets to promptly grasp
information of industries in the upper and lower stream in relation
to our products and adopt strategies to ensure steady growth in
our profits. We will maintain good cooperative relationships with
major clients by providing them with products highly functional
and of consistent quality. In addition, we will establish an enriched
product structure and portfolio to diversify the risk of concentration
of products. Our products are sold all over the world to avoid
risk of regional economy fluctuations. We keep developing new
customers to lower the dependence on one single customer.

Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of the
Group is mainly related to its exporting activities. Along with the
continuous expansion of the export business scale, the operation
of the Group may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rate.

In view of this, the Group resets the export price every quarter to
avoid the risk of foreign exchange fluctuation, and concentrates
purchase in China to lower the foreign exchange risk. The Group
will actively monitor the impact of change in currency exchange
rates on the Group and, while taking into account the nature of its
business, adopt measures based on scientific identification and
effective balance to control relevant risk in order to avoid material
loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group neither drew up
any hedgin_g policy, nor adopted any hedging instruments.
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We are exposed to risks associated with fluctuations in
prices of raw materials and supply

The prices of raw materials on which we depend may be affected
by a number of factors, including market supply and demand,
changes in PRC import duties, PRC and global economic
conditions and changes to the PRC or international environmental
and regulatory requirements. The prices of the raw materials are
to a certain extent related to the price of crude oil. Fluctuations
in oil prices may affect the prices of toluene, an upstream raw
material of PNT, which, in turn, may also affect the prices of PNT.
Any significant increases in the cost of the raw materials may
increase our cost of production and negatively affect our profit
margin and, more generally, our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects. A reduction in, or lack of
availability of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain,
may also impact our profitability to the extent that we are required
to pay higher prices for, or are unable to secure adequate
supplies of the necessary raw materials.

In this regard, we choose our suppliers of raw materials based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
qualified suppliers. We purchase critical raw materials from
several suppliers to avoid possible risk of relying on one single
supplier. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically
on a monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and
specifications of products purchase, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. Furthermore, we attach importance to maintaining good
relationships with major suppliers to ensure we can secure
sufficient supply of raw materials of stable quality in a timely
manner and avoid any adverse effect of reduction in, or lack of
availability of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain. In
response to price changes of raw materials, we seek to adjust the
prices at which we sell our products to shift any increase in our
costs to our customers so as to maintain our profit margins.
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Expansion into new markets presents increased risks

The competitive conditions and customer preferences of new
markets may be different from our existing markets. As a result,
our future operation in these markets may be less successful than
those in the DSD Acid and DMSS markets. Customers in these
new markets might not be familiar with our brand and we may
need to build up brand awareness with greater effort than we
originally planned. We may find it more difficult in new market to
hire, train and retain qualified employees. This may have material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

In this regard, we will strengthen preliminary research and
commercial feasibility analysis in relation to new markets, increase
research and development of new products, technologies and
techniques and hire experienced staff to fulfil our development
plan for the future.

We experience seasonal fluctuations

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our business and results
of operations. Sales of our products and our production activities
are generally slower during the first quarter of each year as a
result of the Chinese New Year holidays in the first quarter, where
many of the consumer product manufacturers stop production.
Furthermore, large quantity of herbicide is typically produced
ahead of the farming seasons for use during the farming seasons.
As a result, demand for agricultural chemical intermediates
such as ONT and OT, a raw material of certain herbicide, also
correspond to this seasonal trend. Failure to manage seasonality
in our business may cause our revenue and financial condition to
be adversely affected.

In this regard, we make reasonable arrangements for the
production and sales of products based on their respective
market demand to cope with our exposure to seasonal fluctuation.
For agricultural chemical intermediates such as ONT and OT,
we conduct meticulous analysis and research on the seasonal
demand for our products in various regions or countries and make
active moves in developing domestic and overseas markets to
mitigate the impact of seasonal factors. In addition, we carefully
monitor and control the fluctuation in our working capital arising
from seasonal movements of revenue so as to take timely
and effective action and provide our business with stable and
adequate cash for operations.
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 24 to 33 of this annual report for details.

OUTLOOK

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 21 to 23 of this annual report for details.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the Reporting Period are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The highlight of results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on page 8 of this annual
report. This highlight does not constitute part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 35 of this annual report for details.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue from the top
five customers of the Group accounted for approximately 48.0%
(2018: approximately 41.9%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
the turnover attributable to its largest single customer accounted
for approximately 14.3% of its total revenue (2018: approximately
14.5%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the purchases from the
top five suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
39.2% (2018: approximately 37.2%) of its total purchases, and the
turnover attributable to its largest single supplier accounted for
approximately 21.9% of its total purchases (2018: approximately
20.6%).
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During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any Shareholders (who to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital
in issue) had interest in any of the Group’s top five customers or
suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 162.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB633.3 million.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan' (appointed on 10 January 2019)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIAO Yongzheng? (resigned on 10 January 2019)
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Notes:

T Ms. ZHANG Nan has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 10 January 2019. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 January
2019.

& Due to work commitment, Mr. XIAO Yongzheng has resigned
as a non-executive director. For details, please refer to the
Company‘s announcement dated 10 January 2019.
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

In accordance with the article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible for
re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Thus, Mr. GE Yi, Mr. ZHU Lin and Mr. YU Miao
will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM will be despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Details of changes to any of the information in relation to any
Director during the Reporting Period required to be disclosed
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” contained herein.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 91 to 96 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received the confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration
exceeding three years or which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER IN MAJOR TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, (i) no contracts of
significance had been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries; and (ii)
none of the Directors and their connected entities (as defined in
the Companies Ordinance) either directly or indirectly, have a
material interest in any transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial
year to which the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party which is material to
the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the businesses of the Company were entered into or
existed.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, with regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Details of the remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals for the Reporting Period are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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PENSION SCHEMES

Details of pension schemes of the Group are set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out as follows:

(i) Interest in the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held® shareholding®
EEEB EEME FERGHEO REBNBT D
Ge Yi Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 12.84%
X< AR EEEE R (FE)®
Interest of other parties to an
agreement required to be disclosed
under section 317 of the SFO 400,013,250 (L)® 38.52%
RIRRE MR GG E317 1%
IRT IR HAL T s 2 s (FE)®
Notes: Hiat
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1) [4FE | IEZROFHFE -
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These Shares represent Shares held by Cavalli which is
wholly owned by Mr. Ge Yi, and Mr. Ge Yi is deemed to
be interested in the same pursuant to the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right
transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited.
As such, Mr. Ge Yi is deemed to be interested in the
400,013,250 Shares (long position) which Hero Time
Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and
Star Path Ventures Limited are interested in under
section 317 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No arrangement has been made by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries for any Director to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, and no rights to any share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate were
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised during
the Review Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register of the

Company maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:

R=B-AF+=A=+—A
0 THAL (EFEFRARABBIRAL R
AR AR AR B IR 15 o 1 IR R B R R 15
BIYEXVEELRIH HANAL R BELEBER
AR TR CGES R ABE ) E336HET B2
BRMAZBHESAR -
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest securities™ shareholding®
REREHE B EntE BEHEO REBMOBE DL
Cavalli Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 12.84%
EmfEAA (F&)
Qi Lin Interest of spouse 133,337,750 (L)® 12.84%
E=S7) Al B (IFE)®
Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 12.84%
R EE R (FR)®
Trustee/Interest of children under 18 266,675,500 (L)® 25.68%
RFEA S RIS ERAF LM (iFE)®
Ge Chengyu Beneficiary of a trust 138,337,750 (L)® 12.84%
XEAE (EEAEIN (HFR)®
Ge Chenghui Beneficiary of a trust 133,337,750 (L)® 12.84%
X FrEXmA (iFE)®
Hero Time Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 12.84%
KR EIRER DA EmfEEA (F&)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)® 38.52%
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest securities® shareholding®
REERE B EntE BEHEO REMAOBE DL
Star Path Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 12.84%
EReliRBR AT EmlEA (78)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L) 38.52%
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO
RIEFE 77 R B RPI 2317 & (FR)™
BTWE 2 N E M7 P s
Radiant Pearl Holdings Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L)® 12.84%
Limited
PRERERA EmfEAA (HFE)®
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)® 38.52%
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO
RIRFE 75 B 1R 58 317 {6 (FE)®
ATHE RN BEEMT Rz Em
Winshare Hongtai (Shenzhen) Beneficial owner 66,171,000 (L) 6.37%
Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
XHER(RIDKREEE EmfiE A (&)
®E(ARER)
Notes: Bzt -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1) [FE | BRI TR -

(2) As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued Shares  (2)
were 1,038,395,500 Shares.

(3) Ms. Qi Lin, as the spouse of Mr. Ge Yi, is deemed to be (3)
interested in the Shares which Mr. Ge Yi is interested or
deemed to be interested in under the SFO.

(4) Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Qi Lin,  (4)
and'Ms. Qi Lin is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is interested in pursuant to the
SFO.
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(5) Ms. Qi Lin holds all the interests in Hero Time Ventures Limited
and Star Path Ventures Limited as trustee (Ge Chengyu and
Ge Chenghui, who both are children under the age of 18 of
Ms. Qi Lin, are beneficiaries of the trusts of Hero Time Ventures
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited, respectively). As such,
Ms. Qi Lin, as the trustee and the parent of Ge Chengyu and
Ge Chenghui, is deemed to be interested in the Shares owned
by Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited.
And Ge Chengyu and Ge Chenghui are respectively deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Hero Time Ventures
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited hold as beneficiary of
trust.

(6) On 24 June 2019, Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Hence, Hero Time
Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested in 400,013,250
Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares which Mr.
Ge Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited are interested in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

(7) On 24 June 2019, Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Hence, Star Path
Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested in 400,013,250
Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares which Mr. Ge
Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Hero Time Ventures
Limited are interested in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

(8) On 24 June 2019 Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Hence, Radiant Pearl
Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in 400,013,250
Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares which Mr. Ge
Yi, Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited
are interested in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors
have not been aware of any person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would be required to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the
register maintained under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group did not have any share option scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debentures for the year ended 31
December 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company or subsisted as at the end of the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company for the
Review Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, as the Board believed
that the value of the Shares of the Company could not reflect their
intrinsic value and the repurchase of Shares would reflect the
Board’s confidence in the Company’'s development prospects,
the Company repurchased a total of 3,450,000 Shares from the
Stock Exchange at the total consideration (before expenses) of
HK$8,971,055. The repurchased 2,367,000 Shares and 1,083,000
Shares were subsequently cancelled on 23 January 2019 and 13
December 2019, respectively.
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Details of the repurchase are as follows:

Total number

Directors’ Report

EEERE

BOFBOT

of Shares Highest purchase Lowest purchase Total consideration

Month repurchased price per Share price per Share (before expenses)

HK$ HK$ HK$

=Rl ERERGOHE ERESBEE ERBEBEE BRE (MR 2 AT)

BT BT BT

January 2,367,000 5.62 1.35 6,995,510
—A

October 1,083,000 1.92 1.73 1,975,545
+ A

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of [ FFiHEEN » AN F e T E A M E

its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands that would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Review Year, the Group made charitable and other
donations in a total amount of RMB0.04 million.

\/i\,/ \\
) /
,,////"’/
\6 Eﬂ Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBER A

RBE_ZT-NFT_A=T-HILEFEAEE
HEFBERARE LHES o

BrRBEER

MBERAAEHESEEZRBETLEETHEERE
BX - REARRRRRLPIEERBRE BRREEH

frfn o

BERRERERR

EXVTHERREAEFEARAERMEZENE
AR % kR -

A E R

REBEFA  AEEEEHEESBREEMBES
HARM0.04BETT °

\
o



UNDERTAKINGS OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Ge and Cavalli had entered into the Deed of Non- competition
in favour of our Company (for itself and as trustee for the benefit
of each of its subsidiaries), under which Mr. Ge and Cavalli had
undertaken to our Company that they will not, and will procure
that none of their respective associates (other than members
of our Group) will, directly or indirectly (including through
anybody corporate, partnership, joint venture or other contractual
arrangement) or as principal or agent, either on any of their own
account or with each other or in conjunction with or on behalf of
any person, firm or company or through any entities (except in or
through any members of our Group):

o carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, with
or is likely to be in competition, directly or indirectly, with
our business, whether as a Shareholder, Director, senior
officer, partner, agent, lender, employee, consultant or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise; and

. take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may
interfere with or disrupt our business (as defined in the
Prospectus) including, but not limited to, solicitation of any
of the then current customers, suppliers or employees from
any members of our Group.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the Deed of Non-
competition.

Since 24 June 2019, Cavalli ceased to be a controlling
shareholder of the Company and hence is no longer subject to
the Deed of Non-competition. For more details, please refer to the
disclosure of interests form of Cavalli filed on 27 June 2019.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from Mr. Ge
in respect of his compliance during the Reporting Period with the
non-competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition
issued to the Company in 2019.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the
Reporting Period based on data and the confirmation provided or
given by Mr. Gg and are satisfied that he had complied with the

Deed of Non-competition.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

e

As at 31 December 2019, no Directors or any of their associates
had any interests in any business which competed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the Review Year, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, and details of which are set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Such related party transactions include the connected
transactions (fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of Listing
Rules). The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
Listing Rules.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has not
been involved in any material litigation or arbitration. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material litigation or claim
pending or threatened against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to article 34.1 of the Articles of Association, every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred
or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur
or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. The Group has
taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout
the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
Every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company is therefore
entitled to be indemnified subject to the Company Law or other
relevant regulations for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2019 for the benefit of the Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
section headed “Report of Corporate Governance” on pages 123
to 149 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued shares, being the minimum percentage of public float
as prescribed by the Stock Exchange and under the Listing Rules,
was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Ernst & Young has audited
the accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young is required to retire in the forthcoming AGM, and
is eligible and offers itself for re-election. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the AGM.

L J
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

»//
(122

The Register of Members will be closed from 9 June 2020 to
12 June 2020, both days inclusive, in order to determine the
identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the AGM,
during which period no share transfers will be registered. To be
eligible to attend the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on 8 June 2020.

The Register of Members will also be closed from 23 June 2020
to 26 June 2020, both days inclusive, in order to determine the
entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the final dividend
during which period no share transfers will be registered. To
qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on 22 June 2020.

By order of the Board
GE i
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Beijing, the PRC, 25 March 2020
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Report of Corporate Governance

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
shareholders and enhance its value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the corporate governance code and
corporate governance report under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own corporate governance code. The Company has
been in compliance with all applicable code provisions under
the corporate governance code throughout the Reporting Period,
except for code provision A.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company will continue
to review and monitor its corporate governance practices in order
to ensure the compliance with the corporate governance code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established four Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. The Board has delegated to
the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

the Remuneration Committee,

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of liability arising from legal action against its Directors,
and will conduct annual review on such insurance cover.
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Board Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised
three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. BAI Kun (Chief financial officer)
Ms. ZHANG Nan (appointed on 10 January 2019)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIAO Yongzheng (resigned on 10 January 2019)
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As regards the corporate governance code provision requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to
the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Group’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are
also provided with regular updates on the Group’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the joint company secretaries of the
Company update and provide the Directors with written training
materials in relation to their roles, functions and duties.
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A summary of training received by the Directors for the Reporting
Period according to the records provided by the Directors is as
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follows:
Nature of
Continuous Professional
Development
Name of Directors EEnR BEEXHERENLE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. GE Yi XCEE B
Mr. BAI Kun HELAE A, B, C
Ms. Zhang Nan SR+ A, B
Non-executive Director' FHITES"
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentt 4 A B
Independent non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung fAIRUR S0 B
Mr. ZHU Lin RIRFAE A B, C
Mr. YU Miao FEEE B
Notes: Hat -
A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or A : HERSER S5k SmER,HE
briefings weg
B: reading materials on various topics, including corporate pg: BMEZRERNZENOME  ZEBRELES
governance matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, B BERBREE - FmEAEEAEEE
Listing Rules and other relevant laws il
C: participating in training provided by law/accounting firms and C: SN#2ED S SE IR R Y| EmARQ T

that relating to the business of the Company

! Mr. Xiao Yongzheng resigned as a non-executive Director on
10 January 2019.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company deviates from the code provision A.2.1
because Mr. GE Yi performs both the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. Since Mr. GE has been
with the Group for many years, he has a thorough understanding
in our business, management, customers and products. With his
extensive experience in business operation and management,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person
provides the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
facilitates effective implementation and execution of our business
decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Company.

Under the leadership of Mr. GE, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives, the
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities
between the Board and the management of the Company. To
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company, the Board shall nevertheless review the effectiveness
of the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in
light of prevailing circumstances.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. GE Yi, being the executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 15 June 2018, which is subject to renewal upon mutual
agreement.

Mr. BAI Kun, being the executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 23 August 2019, which is subject to renewal upon
mutual agreement.
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Ms. ZHANG Nan, being the executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 10 January 2019, which is subject to renewal
upon mutual agreement.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15 June
2018, renewable upon mutual agreement.

No Director has entered into a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible for
re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Therefore, Mr. GE Yi, Mr. ZHU Lin and Mr. YU
Miao will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election as the Director at the forthcoming AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The
agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
Board meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the Board meetings or Board Committee
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to
the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings shall be
kept by the joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by the Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings and one annual RFEHAN > EEGHBIT4NESCCHE L 1ARE
general meeting were held, and the attendance of the individual BEFARE @ ERESHFEBE RSN T
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

Meeting Attended/ Meeting Attended/
Number of Number of
Board meetings General meetings
Directors Bx HESE EBEXE HESE BREAERH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GE Yi XEE 4/4 1/1
Mr. BAI Kun HEXE 4/4 11
Ms. ZHANG Nan SR+ 4/4 1/1
Non-executive Director! FHITES"
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentft 4 4/4 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTEE
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung AR ST 4/4 0/1
Mr. ZHU Lin KRR HE 4/4 1/1
Mr. YU Miao FEEE 4/4 1/1
Note: B EE -
1 Mr. Xiao Yongzheng resigned as a non-executive Director ' HBBAER T —NF—ATHBEENT
on 10 January 2019. Following the resignation of Mr. Xiao EE -BEHBHALRFMTE  HREZZE
Yongzheng, his vacancies in the Audit Committee and the ghFMEZEEG2=RED A BREBIEH
Remuneration Committee had been taken up by Mr. Ho TEEMNMBTERRREEES - UB=-Z
Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. Zhu Lin, the current independent —NWFE—A+BRBEM - BEFIE - B2HA
non-executive Directors, respectively with effect from 10 ARBHAZTE-—NF—A+BE2ZR% -
January 2019. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 10 January 2019.
(M €
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—
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she complied with the Model
Code throughout the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also adopted its own
code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model
Code for the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate
governance duties include:

(a)

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and to make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board on
matters;

to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report; and

to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company'’s whistleblowing policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Zhu Lin (chairman), Mr. Xiao Yongzheng (resigned on 10
January 2019), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (designated on 10
January 2019) and Mr. Yu Miao, all of which are independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to
deal with any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT

Report of Corporate Governance

EREBRE

DHREABEE
EFEQHR CXELAEBEFNARAMLT  ®F
MEEERBERR

(a) BEURERARRNEETERREEREN
EZBRRER

(b) BIAREZEEREREREZEIIREE

BEERE
() #HIE BEEKEREANEEREZTZRST

STRIRA R

(d) HIERBRARBZEEERBRRIER
YRAEESHBESRMERBHEEE

my

() MHAATHEEEATAZETHRRE
CEEARELHE R

it

()  BERERAATDHAATHRBHANHY
IR -

EREEER=EKEER - IRREE(ER) -
HEBSELE (RZF-NAF—A+HEHE) - [ARLE
FERZZ-NAF-ATHERE) RTHEE
RABERY  —UZBH/BIUIFNTESE -

BERZEENIERANT

—

TREAMINERBENERE EFRER
BRRNEFSRMES AN EREEN
M M EE B ARSK - AR IR A B ZER
B % B3k X B R "% AR BB B P R



to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if the prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

in reviewing these reports mentioned above before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the Group’s going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and to audit any significant
connected transaction, so as to ensure that management
has performed its duty to establish an effective internal
control system;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
pro'.'fessional development of directors and senior
management, and the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliante with legal and regulatory requirements; and
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8. to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
for inspection.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held a total of
two meetings to discuss and consider the following:

o it reviewed the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 and the auditor’'s report prepared by the external
auditor on accounting matters and the major findings
during the audit;

o it reviewed the interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the period ended 30 June 2019; and

o it reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function), risk management system
and procedures and the re-appointment of external
auditor. The Board did not have separate opinion on any
recommendation and suggestion by the Audit Committee in
relation to the selection, appointment, retirement or removal
of external auditor.

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the
meetings are set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members’ EEHA BHERE EHERH
Mr. ZHU Lin KIFRILE 2/2
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung AR B % 2/2
Mr. YU Miao FarE 2/2

L Mr. Xiao Yongzheng ceased to be the member of the Audit
Committee on 10 January 2019 and therefore did not attend
any meeting during the Reporting Period.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
GE Yi (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. ZHU Lin, of
which Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director and Mr. HO Kenneth Kai
Chung and Mr. ZHU Lin are independent non- executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

1. to analyse the standards and procedures for selection
of Directors and senior management appointed by
the Board; review the structure, size, composition and
diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

2. to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated
for directorship. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Committee shall consider individuals on merit and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board;

38 to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

4. to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually;

5 to assess and review the candidates for director and senior
management to be potentially appointed by the Board,
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer, taking into the Company’s corporate strategy and
the mix ;of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future; and
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6. to examine the assessment standards for Directors and
senior management appointed by the Board, conduct the
relevant assessments and make recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ NOMINATION CRITERIA AND PROCEDURES

The Nomination Committee has also followed certain selection
criteria and nomination procedures in relation to new appointments
and re-appointments of Directors. The selection criteria for
assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her educational
background and professional qualifications, experiences in the
industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions
to diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy.

In the case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee would take into account factors such as contribution
from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate is appointed
for the position of independent non-executive Director, the
Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence
with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules. In
appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first identify potential candidates. After the Nomination
Committee evaluated the candidates based on the selection
criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or more
qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board
will determine and agree on a preferred candidate.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversity of Board composition
has many benefits to the performance of the Company. As
such, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure in designing the Board’s composition, board diversity
will be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is summarised
as follows:

PURPOSE: Aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

POLICY STATEMENT: With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

L J
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SELECTION CRITERIA: The Company is committed to selecting
the best person for the role. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. The Board’s composition (including
gender, age, length of service) will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are held by the same person, and believes
that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
facilitates effective implementation and execution of our
business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company; and

3" the Board Diversity Policy.

The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the
meeting is set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members ZEHR EHERE S EHERE
Mr. GE Yi XEE 1/1
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung fAIRUAR L A& 11
Mr. ZHU Lin KRLE 1/1
J
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. YU Miao (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, Mr. Xiao
Yongzheng (resigned on 10 January 2019) and Mr. ZHU Lin
(designated on 10 January 2019), all of which are independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy according to standards including
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities concerned, and employment terms of
other positions within the Company and its subsidiaries;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

3 to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

o to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibility and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
notiexcessive for the Company;
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7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

8. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to discuss and consider the following:

1. the 2019 and 2020 remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management;

2. the employee remuneration policies and structure of the
Group; and
3. the cash bonus plan of the Group for the year 2019.

The attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings is set out in the following table:
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Fﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ’\]@ﬁ%‘?xﬁﬁ IAREIR 7% 5 2 BF
HEARGRR - BERERSOEFR

FEBETAEREEE &
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AIHEER] -

Pt B AN 2 B 48

RBEHMA - FHEZEELR
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T2REMEESSH

1. é%&%ﬁgﬁﬁm_? hERZZEZF
FHNF

2. AEEE B THIMBURE REER, &

3 RE —NFEREHEETE -

EFMEZEERBLEZEFEENBEREINTK

Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members' EEHH EHEREEHERE
Mr. YU Miao FEEE 2/2
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung B¢V 2/2
Mr. ZHU Lin RREAE 2/2
1 Mr. Xiao Yongzheng ceased to be the member of the HBEREER _ZE—NEF-ATATHEES
Remuneration Committee on 10 January 2019 and therefore MEEEKE  IURBRERRNILZELEFE

did not attend any meeting during the Reporting Period. A& -

=Ry

ESG COMMITTEE ESGZRE®
The Company approved the establishment of the ESG Z"V\i _“—jlg—f—_ﬂ_—i—ﬁ?tt}ﬁﬁfcjiliseé
Committee on 20 December 2019. The ESG Committee consists == ° ESGEE@MAAKRMMN AR M%ﬁ?’:
of five members, namely Ms. DUAN Weihua (chairman of the (§ TR ARBERERE)  BRBREE(R
committee, chief development officer of the Group), Mr. DUAN  FHEREMEAEIR) - BIR 54 (PR SERARER) -

.

Weidong (general manager of the dye division), Mr. LIU Wei BREELE (RALEENTRAE) RAMETE

(general manager of the pigment division), Mr. YANG Fuguang
(administrative director of Tongguang manufacturing base) and
Mr. SHI Bingfeng (general production manager of Tsaker Dongao
)91 duchon base), all of which are management members of the
. Company with relevant environmental, social and governance

///Jm wledge and experience.
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The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee are as
follows:

1. to identify related issues that have a significant impact
on the Group’s operations and/or the interests of other
important stakeholders in relation to environmental, social
and governance aspects;

2. to provide guidance for and review the Company's
environmental, social and governance vision, goals and
strategies, and make recommendations to the Board to
approve relevant environmental, social and governance
initiatives;

3. to monitor and review emerging environmental, social and
governance trends and issues, provide guidance for the
development of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance vision based on relevant circumstances, and
provide advisory opinions on management of the current
and emerging issues that affect Company’s environmental,
social and governance;

4. to review and adopt risk assessment of the Company’s
impact on health, safety, environment and society;

5} to set the Company’s environmental, social and
governance goals, indicators, key performance indicators
and measures, monitor the implementation of relevant
measures, and evaluate the effectiveness of relevant
measures;

6. to adopt and update the policies on production safety,
environmental protection, social responsibility management
and corporate governance of the Company when
necessary;

7. to assist the Board in preparing the annual environmental,
social and governance report in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(set forth in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules) for its
consideration, approval and disclosure;
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8. to review and monitor the Company’s environmental, 8. R WEREAARRINEE  HEREA
social and governance policies and practices to ensure BERRER  UBRETEERBRERTE
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

9. to review and evaluate the performance and terms of 9. BV A ZEEENRERBESE - IR
reference of the committee to ensure that the committee REBGHEFRBERARN - WERE
operate at optimal efficacy and recommend changes that it RREENEPUHESTSHE : &

deems appropriate for the approval of the Board; and

10.  other matters authorized by the Board related to health, 10. ZEEZeREA@EREE %2 BE He8

safety, environment, social responsibility and corporate ERPEERHEMEIE
governance.
REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT = A% B 1R E B9 Fr A

The remuneration of senior management of the Company RBHEHA  AAFNSHEEE (BEILES
(including three Directors, whose biographies are set out on FEZEEHNAFHRFEIIEZEFNE) S ER
pages 91 to 92 of this annual report) during the Reporting Period — &5 T :

falls under the following bands:

Number of individuals

Band of remuneration (RMB) MEZER (ARE) A"
Over RMB 1,500,000 AER#1,500,0007T A F 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,0017TE AR 1,500,0007T 1
RMBO to RMB1,000,000 AR®EOTTLE ARYA1,000,0007T 2

Further particulars of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest  HRI/AERE LB AIHE+ AT URBEZEEZHS
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix TR SEHEBS @ —F B - HRERES
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the  BfEREMFSRI o

consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
page 150 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
by the Audit Committee on an annual basis.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in the performance of its
regulatory and corporate governance role in the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
as well as financial and internal audit functions. Risk management
and internal control systems can only make reasonable but not
absolute guarantees to prevent major misrepresentations or
losses, which are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failiﬁg to meet business objectives.
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Internal audit department

The Group has established an Internal Audit Department, whereby
such department plays an important role in monitoring the internal
governance of the Company. The major responsibilities of the
internal control department include standardizing and reviewing
operating risks, financial positions and internal control of the
Company, as well as conducting regular and comprehensive
audits of all subsidiaries and affiliates of the Company. The
Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit Committee at its
annual meeting in respect of the adequacy and effectiveness of
its work in the previous year and the work plan for the following
year.

Risk management and internal control system

The Group adopted the three lines of defence model in the
management of risk. Operational management forms the core
of the first line of defence as they contact with the risk sources
in the first place. They are responsible for identifying, reporting
and preliminarily managing risks in their daily operations. Our
second line of defence is aimed to facilitate and monitor the
implementation of effective risk management practices by
operational management and assists risk owners in defining
risk exposures and reporting adequate risk-related information
throughout the Company. Our internal audit function is the core
of the third line of defence and mainly responsible for checking,
auditing and monitoring the work performed by the first and
second lines of defence.

The Company’s risks are identified from business processes in
our established enterprise-wide risk assessment methodologies.
We select key participants across the Company who are involved
in each of the business process as interviewees to identify the
risks to form our risk universe. Each risk within the risk universe is
assessed in terms of likelihood of occurrence and the significance
of impact, taken into account the current internal controls in place
to mitigate these risks. The risk assessment results are reported
to senior management, the Audit Committee and the Board for the
confirmation of our risk response strategies and the development
of our improvement measures, based on their preferences towards
risk, the available resources for risk mitigation, and the current
controls in place. The Board and the Audit Committee assess
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems (covering all key controls including
strategy, finance, operation, and compliance controls) on an
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During the Review Year, the Company reviewed the report
prepared by the Internal Audit Department containing the
investigation results and improvement suggestions as well as the
management letter prepared by the external auditor, and promptly
took appropriate improvement measures to mitigate the risks.

The Company’s internal control system is based on Internal
Control-Integrated Framework of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO"), and has
five components, namely Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and Monitoring
Activities. The system intends to facilitate the design and
functioning of good control practices and reduce the likelihood
and impact of risks to an acceptably low level, in order for us to
achieve our objectives in operations, reporting, and compliance.

Any material internal control defects identified are timely
communicated and carefully evaluated for their potential impacts.
The departments or functions who are owners of these controls,
are required to propose corrective measures and obtain approval
from management before implementation. The implementation
status is monitored by both management and the Internal Audit
Department to ensure these control defects are properly resolved
in a timely manner.

The Group has also established policies and procedures
for the handling and dissemination of inside information,
including “Material Information Internal Reporting System of
Tsaker Chemical Group Limited” and “Information Disclosure
Management System of Tsaker Chemical Group Limited”. The
information or data to be disclosed should be properly reviewed
and approved by our compliance functions and management to
ensure its timeliness, accuracy, sufficiency and effectiveness, and
is closely monitored after disclosure.

During the Review Year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group, and
considered that the design and implementation of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group are
effective and efficient in all material respects.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the auditor in respect of the audit and non-
audit services provided to the Company for the Reporting Period
is as follows:
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Amount (RMB)

Type of services R R 2H(ARY%T)
Audit services %8RS 2,745,000
Non-audit services in relation to: BN TS ERIERZRE
Interim results reviewing FER AR 700,000
Agreed upon procedure EERF 150,000
Taxation consulting DT =
Total S 3,595,000

As at the date of this annual report, the Company and Ernst
& Young Tax Services Limited were still negotiating the
tax-related charges for the year ended 31 December 2019 (for
the year ended 31 December 2018: USD4,516.84).

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. YANG Xue was appointed as the joint company secretary of
the Company on 26 July 2018, and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider) as
the other joint company secretary to assist Ms. YANG Xue to
discharge her duties as one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company. Ms. YANG Xue is the primary contact person of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. YANG Xue and
Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun have undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 30 November 2018, the Board approved and adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, the Company may distribute
dividends in (i) cash; (ii) shares; or (iii) a combination of cash
or shares. When deciding whether to propose/declare dividends
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, amongst others, the general financial position,
operating results,
the Group, and the distribution shall be made in accordance with
applicable rules and regulations (including the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands) and subject to restrictions under the Articles
of Association.

liquidity position and capital requirements of

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognises the importance of timely
and non-selective disclosure of information on the Company,
which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board
Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external
auditor will also attend the annual general meetings to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and its Shareholders
http://www_ tsaker.com, where the
Companys business operations
information, corporate governance
are available fof public access.

and maintains a website at
up-to-date information on the
and developments, financial
practices and other information
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

7

)

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, Shareholders may put
forward proposals for consideration at general meetings of the
Company. Any one or more member(s) of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board to convene such general meeting shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow article 12.3 of the Articles of Association for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures are
set out in the section headed “CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS” in
this annual report.

N
J

s

4485 Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ Z{t 2 E£EHER AT

Report of Corporate Governance

EREBRE

IR R EF

RRERROMELEN  NATERBERAE L
HEER(BEERENES) REBIUREER

RIERKRE LIRZW MM B RBFZFRIE LW AR RIS
BREFTRETRR REARBRERRKRGETT
B REBRAR R R AEETE -

ARRRBRIAERIELES

RIBABEIZA - RRANRARBRRAE L2
HEFBUEZE - IR ERNREZ2ERER
FEXRBAERAARBRRAS LREILHEK
ATPREDZ—WMKRR - ARENEBANESS
FARAER —BHFERARAMERLETEREH
ERBRRENKRE - NRBAAERDIEANE
AEE: DieBRRNEEERE2RMEARE
ToMEZR2IBNEZTEREARZAS - AR
EBRALTABTRERREFARAS  ME2E
KATHREEEREARBRREMAEELNM
BERXEHARBREZRLALELEN -

RERAELREBRENER

MERERARDEL EREAFRRNBRAE LR
EMHPRFERE - A FREAERORRAIZA
NAMABERMAE12.30%  EXREFRBRERIKR

EYRELIRERER - AFER[BRABREHIAE
Miz2Es | —HHNBRNERRER



ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the capital
market department of the Company at its headquarters through
email at ir@tsaker.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association during the
Reporting Period.

Report of Corporate Governance
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:x

To the shareholders of Tsaker Chemical Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Central, Hong Kong

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsaker
Chemical Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 158 to 285, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter (continued)
Recognition of deferred tax
assets

Several of the Company’s
subsidiaries had accumulated
tax losses of RMB38,228,000
as at 31 December 2019. The
Group has recognised deferred
tax assets of RMB8,020,000
against the tax losses to the
extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefits through
future taxable profits is probable.

Recognition of deferred
tax assets requires critical
management judgement about
the likelihood and magnitude of
creating future taxable profits to
offset the tax losses, including
expectations for future sales
and margin developments and
overall market and economic
conditions. Actual profits are
likely to be different from those
forecasts since anticipated
events frequently do not occur
as expected and unforeseen
events may arise, and their
impact on estimates and
forecasts may be material.

The Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures regarding
the deferred tax assets are
included in Note 2.4 Summary of
significant accounting policies,
Note 3 Significant accounting
judgements and estimates
and Note 27 Deferred tax to
the consolidated financial
statements.

\/\
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How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating the
assumptions used in projecting
the expected future taxable
profits such as sales volume,
sales price and margin, by
comparing these key inputs
with the Group’s historical
data and economic forecasts
as well as by reviewing
supporting documents for those
assumptions made such as
sales contracts and budgets
prepared by management,
and assessing the income tax
rate applicable to the deferred
tax assets to be recognised.
We involved our tax experts
to assist us with the corporate
income tax reconciliation
review. We also reviewed the
adequacy of disclosures made
in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in respect
of the recognition of deferred
tax assets.
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Key audit matter (continued)
Withholding tax for retained
profits of subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2019, the
majority of retained profits of
the Group were generated
from subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. Distribution
of such profits is subject to
withholding income tax. Based
on management’s estimation of
profits to be distributed in the
foreseeable future, dividends
of RMB242,880,000 will be
distributed from Mainland China
to overseas holding companies.
Therefore, deferred tax liability of
RMB12,144,000 was recognised
for the retained profits generated
from subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. Management
expects that except for the
aforementioned dividends, the
remaining retained profits will
be used for the subsidiaries’
continuing reinvestment.

The process to determine
the provision for withholding
taxes for retained profits is
complex and involves significant
management’s estimates and
judgement on the cash flow
forecasts of overseas holding
companies, as well as the
subsidiaries in Mainland China.

The Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures regarding
the deferred tax liabilities are
included in Note 2.4 Summary
of significant accounting
policies, Note 3 Significant
accounting judgements and
estimates and Note 27 Deferred
tax to the consolidated financial
statements.

L]

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating
management’'s assumptions
and estimates in relation to the
likelihood of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China to distribute
a dividend in the foreseeable
future through comparison
with their development,
investment as well as dividend
plans. We also assessed
the cash demands of the
overseas holding companies
by reviewing the cash flow
forecasts, liquidity analysis
and other commitments.
We obtained management’s
representation with respect
to the distribution plan of
the subsidiaries’ retained
profits. We also reviewed the
adequacy of disclosures made
in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax for the
subsidiaries’ retained profits.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report,
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

other than the consolidated

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

other matters,

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Bennett S.H. Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

25 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

“ GEBEmkEMZEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-hNE+-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARET T ARBEFTT
REVENUE g 5 1,818,347 1,515,882
Cost of sales SHEBA (777,390) (991,789)
Gross profit EF 1,040,957 524,093
Other income and gains HAn A R 5 9,517 11,488
Selling and distribution expenses HER DAY (44,914) (48,462)
Administrative expenses THFEX (188,357) (131,617)
Other expenses HEAx (15,466) (5,528)
Impairment losses on property, W - BE REERE
plant and equipment &5 18 (52,035) (719)
Finance costs ZUp IO 6 (31,661) (22,785)
Exchange losses, net b i 518 5 58 (8,402) (17,555)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE BT R 7 709,639 308,915
Income tax expense FriS B 10 (191,355) (86,098)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 518,284 222,817
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hh2EUz
Other comprehensive income ARERNERBEER S EE
that may be reclassified to profit or BRI E M2 IS
loss in subsequent periods ($0BRFHIR)
(net of tax):
Exchange differences on translation & /EINEFEAIE H =58
of foreign operations 8,396 7,016
Other comprehensive income that 1R E 18 B~ e &5
will not be reclassified to profit DEEBRZHNEMEE
or loss in subsequent periods Wzs (F0BRFHIR)
(net of tax):
Equity investments designated at fair EER AL BETEEEE
value through other comprehensive st A H 2 E UL S
income (“FVOCI") (RAAREEFTERHES
STAHEMmEmEKE]) 4
~ 2 B 1R A @715 @ (roan !
Y
" 7 /
—
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
REBnREMZEKRER (£F)

Year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_ZT-hNE+-A=+t—HIFE

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —T—N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR® T AREETTT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SREME2mEWE -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX I #i1E 3,681 5,975
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S$RAZHEWE&EE
FOR THE YEAR 521,965 228,792
Profit attributable to: THIATEMEGER
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEFEUN 517,927 222,901
Non-controlling interests eI AR A 357 (84)
518,284 222,817
Total comprehensive income THATEEEERZLREE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent BARER A 521,608 228,876
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 357 (84)
521,965 228,792
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREERERETA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic and diluted EARNEE
(expressed in RMB per share) (IRERARET|TR) 13 0.50 0.21
®
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: Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

31 December 2019

—hWFt+-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—~H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR®T T ARBTIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - RE k&G 14 1,521,318 1,496,085
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(b) 83,907
Prepaid land lease payments AR L EFKIE - 76,063
Intangible assets A E 17 22,726 3,086
Equity investments designated at EERAREBEAELEEY
FVOCI SEAE M 2 s 2 RIERE 16 51,230 9,287
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 27 39,912 23,931
Restricted cash XREE 22 - 9,598
Other non-current assets HibIERENEE 5,884 16,045
Total non-current assets IEMBEELRE 1,724,977 1,634,095
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =& 18 274,208 209,998
Trade receivables 2 5 e 8 19 203,276 186,316
Notes receivable FEWERE 20 82,761 68,224
Prepayments and other receivables  TE{3XI18 & H b E UL 5118 21 187,438 266,073
Restricted cash ZRIES 22 3,896 20,170
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEZEY 22 104,844 124,275
Total current assets mENEERE 856,423 875,056
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B 2 3R 23 283,273 345,506
Other payables and accruals Hith B 2008 R et & B 24 119,807 100,910
Contract liabilities EHERE 16,088 7,755
Interest-bearing bank and other sTRIRITREMER
borrowings 25 264,274 230,806
Income tax payable FEAT PTG A 42,849 52,475
Current portion of long-term REAE R BN EREE
borrowings 25 19,646 134,020
Total current liabilities mENE REE 745,937 871,472
&
/
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

HREPBMRREK (F)

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
—2-nF —2-N\F
+t=A=+-8A +-A=+-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR®T T ARBTIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 110,486 3,584
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERREBAE
LIABILITIES 1,835,463 1,637,679
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred income B A 26 23,434 23,316
Deferred tax liabilities BEFHIBA G 27 12,144 8,087
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEIRIT R E AL AR
borrowings 25 29,885 286,391
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(c) 3,559 =
Total non-current liabilities B A ELETE 69,022 317,794
Net assets BEFE 1,766,441 1,319,885
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the &2 B#HA A EGHER
parent
Share capital N 28 67,088 67,491
Treasury shares EF R = (11,031)
Reserves e 29 1,699,077 1,262,636
1,766,165 1,319,096
Non-controlling interests FEPE R R e 276 789
Total equity MR 1,766,441 1,319,885
Ge Yi Bai Kun
@ XX HE
Director Director
: #F #F
(O
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Attributable to owners of the parent

‘o " Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-hNE+-A=+—HIFE

BRTRAARE
Fair value
reserve of
Safety financial Non-
Share  Treasury Share  Capital production  Statutory assetsat Translation Retained controlling Total
capital  shares  premium reserve fund  reserve FVOCI  reserve profits Total interests equity
BRAAEE
FEEER
it ity
RENEY
tHEEL
%2 AMEE FER
Bx  EERR BROEE ERRE  fEEE  iERR fiff  ENRE REEH it BE BHEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥BTR ARETR ARMTR ARETZ ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTL ARETn ARBTR ARETR
At1 January 2019 WoE-NE-A-B 67491  (11,031) 650,828  (105764) 48,223 79249 (1,005) 46518 544587 1,319,096 789 1,319,885
Profitfor the year ERE - - - - - - - - B9 517927 37 518,284
Other comprehensive  EREBZENE
income for the year - - - - - - (4,7115) 8,396 - 3,681 - 3,681
Total comprehensive  ERZANREE
income for the year - - - - - - (4715 8,396 517927 521,608 357 521,95
Repurchase of own shares EEEIEBR( - (188 - - - - - - - (188 - (188
Acquisiion of W AhER
non-contralling interests - - - (130) - - - - - (130) (870)  (1,000)
Dividend distributedto ~ ARFREMRE
shareholders (Note 1)~ (#i12) = = - - - - - - (66,527)  (66,527) - (66,527)
Cancellation of own shares 3 &EHR(R (403) 18913 (185510 - - - - - - - - -
Transfer to statutory ~~ BETRERE
reserve - - - - - 52,220 - - (52,220) - - -
Appropriation o safety ~ EAR24EES
production fund - - - - 6,327 - - - (6,327) - - -
At 31 December 2019 HF-hE
tZA=1-H 67,088 - 632,318" (105804  54550*  131,469* (5,720 54.914*  937.440* 1,766,165 276 1,766,441

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &Z{t 2E£ BB R QA



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_ZT-hNE+-A=+t—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SAREEAELL
Fair value
reserve of
Safety financial Non-
Share  Treasury Share Capital production  Statutory  assetsat  Translation  Retained controling Total
capital shares  premium  reserve fnd  reserve FVOCI  reserve profits Total interests equity
&A1 BE
HEREE
BirALty
2EkEZ
EHAEL
Z2 AMEE
Re ERER  BRRE  AARE  AEEE  RRRE BR EAERE RN g% FiRER  ERER
RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB00O  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-B 67401 - 650828 (308,202) 43875 92,520 2675 39502 555,179 1,143,868 645 1144513
Profit for the year 3yl = = = = - - - - 220000 222,901 (84) 200817
Other comprehensive  EREM2ERE
income for the year - - - - - - (1,041) 7,016 - 5975 - 5975
Total comprehensive  FR2ENEEE
income for the year - - - - - - (1,04) 7016 222901 228876 (64) 228792
Repurchase of own YO
shares - (103 = = . . . . - (11,031 - (1031
Capital injection from ~ FHERER TR
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 228 228
Transfer of fairvalue ~ RHERALE(E
reserve upon the FEREEEHA
disposal of financial b0l by
assets at FVOC| SREAERERLL
Bl = - - - - - (26%) - 263 - - -
Dividend distributedto ~ HEFRENRE
shareholders (Note 12)  (#fz#12) - - - - - - - - (42617)  (42617) - (42617)
Transfer fo statutory ERTITRE
reserve - - - - - 19,729 - - (19729) - - -
Appropriation to safety ~ BAZZ24EES
production fund - - - - 4,348 - - - (4,348) - - -
Conversioninfo a joint~~ ERAKBATZ
stock company with ROERAA
limited liability of a
subsidiary . . - 02438 - (33000) . - (169438) . = =
At31 December 2018 RZE-N\&
+=A=+-H 67491 (11031) 650828 (105764 48.203° 79249 (1005)° 46518' 544587 131909 789 1,310,885
@

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB1,699,077,000 and RMB1,262,636,000 in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and 31
QDecember 2018, respectively.

ZERBBERBEINGAVUBRRARAD R AT
—hWEF+_A=+—A8Ek=ZE—N\F+=-A=+
— B 2iAREARK1,699,077,0007T & A R
1,262,636,0007T °

N
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: Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-hNE+-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR%T T ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETETEBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R %1 Al Vo ) 709,639 308,915
Adjustments for: B TRYFIEEL AR
Finance costs B 75 R 2R 6 31,661 22,785
Exchange losses/(gains), net PE H B8 (W) F a8 990 (906)
Interest income AEA 5 (410) (999)
Dividend income from equity BRARBEGTEEHEES)
investments at FVOCI STAEMEERE 2
AR E 2 IR B A 9 (2,399) -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE BEK
plant and equipment = ETE H B K 7 5,410 1,987
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BE REETE
equipment 14 67,647 60,528
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 15(b) 4,961 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE - L H0 F0 B SR I
payments 15(a) - 4,573
Amortisation of intangible assets A 17 1,101 74
Amortisation of other non-current assets HMIEmEnE Egs - 5,272
Amortisation of deferred income I ST U A B G (3,081) (2,128)
Impairment of trade receivables 2 2R IERE 7 23 15
Impairment of property, plant and Yz - BB R EERE
equipment 7 52,035 719
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRZE#R)FE
realisable value 7 1,991 1,686
869,568 402,521
Increase in inventories FEEm (66,200) (96,717)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and notes B 5 W GRIE K
receivables U ZE IR (3L ), SR (92,113) 73,684
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments TEH K TE Ko LAt Uk IE
and other receivables A (3an) 85,953 (86,605)
Decrease in trade payables & 5 e s E R > (15,582) (2,891)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and  H i & {5 3118 &
accruals FEEE AL CR) 22,136 (10,761)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 8,333 -
Increase in restricted cash PR IR AN (2,922) (95)
e \ .
) -
o x/
(164 Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &3 {c S £@EAR A F
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_ZT-hNE+-A=+t—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥T T ARBEFTT
Cash generated from operations KEEENRE 809,173 279,136
Interest received BUF B 410 999
Interest paid BEAFLE (29,723) (22,901)
Income tax paid B FER (214,943) (40,583)
Net cash flows from operating activities LE SRS REFE 564,917 216,651
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHMEHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from equity investments B WIE A BEE 2 B H# &)
at FVOCI STAHMEE Y2
fRHEIRE 2 IR B 2,399 =
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale H & At &€& EMISHIE
investments = 1,964
Purchases of items of property, plant and HBEEY¥  BERZEIEE
equipment (153,437) (464,459)
Proceeds on disposal of joint ventures HEEBEFEMERIE - 300
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE (20,742) (1,948)
Proceeds on disposal of items of property, HEWE - MENREER
plant and equipment FriSsE 1,521 453
Purchases of equity investments BEETEAAEENZA
designated at FVOCI HEFHT AL MEEREZ
AEtE & (46,658) (8,275)
Proceeds from government grants B BT 1S 58 3,200 3,892
Net cash flows used in investing activities #&&EFEHFTHAR TR EF5 (213,717) (463,073)
@
(O
A



e Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
9 . FARERER

Year ended 31 December 2019
@ x BHE_Z-NE+_A=1t—HILFE

——

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR%T T ARBETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETEMESRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank loans and other RITER R H A GRS RIE
borrowings 30 339,459 254,402
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash for $RITEZ R HEAERZ
bank loans and other borrowings ZRBERED () 30 28,793 (4,356)
Acquisition of non-controlling U B JE PR AR AR 2
interests/capital contribution from EERER T E
non-controlling interests (1,000) 228
Repurchase of own shares FEACNERER ) (7,882) (11,031)
Repayment of bank loans and other BRRITERREAMER
borrowings 30 (662,126) (186,622)
Principal portion of lease liabilities HEBBZA®E 30 (358) -
Dividend paid B E 12 (66,527) (42,617)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing BMEEE (FTH),/ EHEeRE
activities R (369,641) 10,004
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRASEEYRHD B
EQUIVALENTS (18,441) (236,418)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning HYRe RREEEY
of the period 22 124,275 359,787
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXEEHH)FTE
net (990) 906
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END £ XRRERBEELZEY
OF THE YEAR 22 104,844 124,275
YA ®
7 )
S
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is P.O. Box 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the
following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates

° manufacture and sale of pigment intermediates
o environmental technology consultancy services
o manufacture and sale of battery materials

In the opinion of the Directors, the de facto controller of the
Company is Mr. Ge Yi, who holds 51.36% voting right of the
Company.

B 15 B LB

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H

RARETEEER

RABR—ZRKRASHSTMEAZINERAD
Ao AR al M ER A ZP.O. Box
472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman Islands °

ARBR—FKBREERAR - RFEAR - AR
AMMBAR T ENEATES

. EM R BEECR R HE B EEME
=

=

. BRI R EEMEE
. BRI BN 8 A AR TS
. BM B EEMEE

EERA - ADFABRKREHER/XRNEL
BRER/BARRFS1.36%HIRFHE -

N
N \i N/

\ O\
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‘ Notes to Financial Statements
& . B ERIMEE

31 December 2019
N . —E-NF+—A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2RQERFEEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries REMERRAR
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARAIERMBERRNFBHIMT -
follows:
Place and date of Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
incorporation/ registered share interest attributable to
Name establishment capital the Company  Principal activities
BRITEZER/
£R HRAL/ AL SR A ERRA ZF’AEBEfEEEEEﬁE/t TEXH
0
Direct  Indirect
E# ik
Tsaker Chemical (Hongkong) Hong Kong HK$34,174,000 100 —  Investment holding and sale of chemicals
Co., Limited (Tsaker Hongkong) 2 September 2010 REBRREmiHE
PE(L2 (BE) BRAA B 34,174,000%7
(FEER) “2-ZEAAZH
Tsaker Chemical Industry Hebei, People’s RMB70,000,000 — 100 Investment Holding
(Cangzhou) Group Limited Republic of China (“PRC’) RERR
(Tsaker Chemical Industry) 28 September 2017
PR IEE O8M) ARAR MEARLNE ((HE]) 73 AKH70,000,0007
(FELI)* “E—tERAZTNB
Tsaker Chemical (Cangzhou) Co., Hebei, PRC RMB55,000,000 — 100 Production and sale of chemicals
Limited (Tsaker Cangzhou) 23 September 2005 EREENHE
FEL2 OAM) BRAR (REEM) :  hEL ARH55,000,0007
“ZZRENAAZTZR
Hebei Tsaker Chemical Co., Limited Hebei, PRC RMB130,000,000 — 100 Production and sale of chemicals
(Hebei Tsaker) 7 May 2013 tEREENEE
TEF R ERNERAR (TFE) * RETI AK130,000,00070
“E-=FnAtA
Tsaker Chemical (Dongying) Co., Shandong, PRC RMB250,000,000 — 100 Production and sale of chemicals
Limited (Tsaker Dongying) 20 May 2014 EREENHE
YRS (RE) BRAR (WERE) ™ HEWLE ARH250,000,0007T
—E-MERAZTA
Tsaker Technology (Beijing) Co., Beijing, PRC RMB100,000,000 — 100  Technical support and sale of chemicals
Limited (Tsaker Beijing) 17 October 2013 RITERAERHE
FERE (IR) BRAA (RELR) > HELR A&%100,000,0007T
“F-F1AT4A
Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals ~ Shandong, PRC RMB200,000,000 — 100 Production and sale of chemicals and leasing
Co., Limited (Tsaker Dongao) 15 March 2004 L2RAENHFERRE
WEFERRIEERAR (FERR)* REWLF AKH200,000,0007T
ZZTME=ATAA
Tsaker Chemical (Xiajin) Company Shandong, PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100 Production and sale of chemicals
Limited (Tsaker Xiajin) 2 December 2016 LBREERNHE
PEIL2 (E2) BRAR (FEER) " HELXR ARE10,000,0007T
“2\¥+-AZH
Tsaker Chemical (Singapore) Singapore, 8 July 2016 USD7,500 — 100 Sale of chemicals
Private Co., Limited Mg - ZF-~EtANR 75005 LEm#EE
(Tsaker Singapore)
FEIE Grg) LABRAT
(MR
(= @
) )

/

S
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

*

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law

*%

Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except for equity investment
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the@investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities®of the investee).

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H

RARFEEER (&)

FHRNMELARER (&)

EREI2AREMBAR  NEERLY
AEREEEBEATEIBUASEFEE
ZEERD  cEETRREHEMHBARTZ
HEGTHEEHBRILE

* REDEDEREMK A EBEDRSE

* RIBHBEREMKRBER AR

EEE

AMBEHRRIDBRBELE GG ([FES
AEAE]) BEMONEEMBRELER ([F
AUBRELEND) (BRBEURHREE
8- EAGER ((FESTER]) k2
) BAELRE R REERQBERDIH
BERGH - REAABEMAEZBERE
Sh IR ERBE LK AEHIREM
B AARE TARK]D) 25 ME R
BB REERETON T  ESBEH
BERID o

BHEE
HEMBERREEBARRREMB AR (4
BRIAERDBEZE_T-AF+_A=
T BRLEFENMBRR - MEBARIEHA
NEEERAMREFNCER (BREBILEE
BB EhIEEMASEENNAENLSE
BREHSNEBT O ZHIFETEEE - Wik
HBBEHKEHRNEN (AISAKER
RENEEREHRBEBIDNREEN)
FEOBHE -

N
{ ‘\ \7//

N

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE K&

N



2.1

/\\//\
\//

\170‘

AN

/

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited & {25

J

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

EARLQH

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—hE+=ZA=1+—H

RBEEE (F)

SOIEE (&)
WARRERKEAERREEREHRFIRAK
ZEMRRRERELUER - REBE KRG
HERGHEREAHURERENSZEMEEE
ZERIER - 8%

HEEHREMRERBEANGLY
273N

(a)

(b) REEMBEORTONEN @ &

(c) AKENREENBERZER -
MEABEARRZMBEREK 2R EHREA
ﬁ'ﬁﬁ%—QZQﬁﬁ%ﬁ§°WE“
CEERAEBERSESEE BEERS

R EEAMEHRKLEERR/L -

Ba M HE M2 RS 2 & E AR R BB RN
AEEGRAZHER AREERES - B
RS FEBRES A PGSR IAE
BAASEERERARBEZR S 2 EEBNEA
AEEENAE  #xm - W AXkBAE
WA ER 2 BIKH -

B2 A
IMEE



2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Comparative information

Certain Comparative amounts for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been reclassified to conform with the
current year’s presentation.

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—hE+=ZA=1+—H

—F
—=

RBEEE (F)
SHEE (&)

WEERBEABT EXMEARZ G ERE
Pl =RZEFREZ —AAZALREL
AREEEMFEEELEHREES - ¥
BREEHRZMBARRARESEEHNE
RERR AR

WA E2 B R KT B A Rl 2 12 hilE - AR IE
RONZWBRARZEE (PEEE) kB8
& (i) fa] FE 28 AR I o1 4 2 2 BR T8 8 K (i)
RSN 2EN 258 0 RER()E
WREBZAABE: (VIREBEAMREZA
REER(I)EERPEAE L ES 2 B
B8 - RRIERNEMEE KRS AER Z A%
EEGEDET OB BSIRBEF (4
HEg) HREEASEEELERBEEL
BEMHRERZEERR -

kgER

BHE_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFENSE
?ttf%%’ga‘?ﬁ%ﬁ/‘*ﬁ NEEREEZ
E5E -

/\/\

\\ —

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE K&

N/

\\ B
€171j:



‘ Notes to Financial Statements
o * B R

31 December 2019
; o R —E-NF+ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BIBRREEZ25

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised REBERAFE P BIWE B RERAATHET

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial REER] BB IS5 2R -

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BAMGRELER  ABFHEZEN

Negative Compensation FO5R 2 1EF] ATt

HKFRS 16 Leases BERMBWELEN  HE

E165%

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment Gyl ATEIEET ~ ) E

or Settlement F195% 2185 mE

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in ARG AER] RBERFIRE &

Associates and Joint FE 2857 Z1EF] ERZ R ER
Ventures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B (BRI 7% e B RS
Treatments mEREZE®) THEE
— RREE235%

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 3, BB BHHEER BAMBHREER
HKFRSs 2015-2017 HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and —F—AHFER 3% - AEYTE
Cycle HKAS 23 —FE—+F WELAE 115

B F B A HA SR 2R
F125 BB G

HRIF 235 2 EF]

Except for the amendments to HKAS 19, amendments BRERUAEENBEENEBNTE ST E
to HKAS 28, and amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11 in BIZE195% 2 18R] - B G EAIFE285% 2
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which BE] - BAEMBRESEREIRZETRE
are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial B BEREER —FE— A F 2 —F—+FH
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and HIgyFEHENZ BB REERE115%
revised HKFRSs are described below: O FE] REIEEI BB B mRE LR 2 EE
R EHANT -
(Y ®
7 )
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account
for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS
17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under this method,
the standard has been applied retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)
New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. The Group elected to
use the transition practical expedient allowing the
standard to be applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16
has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items
of property, machinery and other equipment. As a
lessee, the Group previously classified leases as
either finance leases or operating leases based on
the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases of
low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the
Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if
any) of the right-of-use assets and interest accrued
on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance
costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position.

Due to the fact that all existing operating lease
contracts, where the Group acts as a lessee, would
be terminated within 12 months at the date of initial
application, the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16
was minimal as at 1 January 2019 except for some
reclassification from prepaid land lease payments to
right-of-use assets.

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16
at 1 January 2019 was as follows:
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EBIHBRREBEZ2H (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(a)  (continued) (@ (&)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued) RoF—NF—F—HZHBZE (&
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled RZE-NF—A—HNHEEBEHA
to the operating lease commitments as at 31 RZE-—N\F+TA=T—HHKZ
December 2018 are as follows: HEAELHRNOT :
RMB’ 000
AR¥T R
Operating lease commitments as at R=Z2—N\F+=-A=+—HH
31 December 2018 REHERE 4,353
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases B AT HRFR S K g FE AP
and those leases with a remaining lease term R-—ZE—NF+=-_HA=+—H
ending on or before 31 December 2019 32 Al JE i 80 78 E AR R A I (4,353)
Lease commitments as at ERPHREERFE165ET
1 January 2019 under HKFRS 16 F‘g—ﬂfﬁ—ﬁ — A ZHAEEE =
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate —ET-hF—A—HHX
as at 1 January 2019 ﬂﬂﬁ»?é?i’ji £ 2R = 7.9%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-Z-hAF—-—A—BNHEEEE =
(b) HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for (b) BE(ERMBHRERRER E')

income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or
tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Amendments to HKFRS 9 allow financial assets
with prepayment features that permit or require
either the borrower or the lender to pay or receive
reasonable compensation for the early termination
of a contract to be measured at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
rather than at fair value through profit or loss. The
amendments clarify that a financial asset passes
the “solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding” criterion regardless
of an event or circumstance that causes the early
termination of the contract and irrespective of which
party pays or receives reasonable compensation
for that early termination. The amendments did not
apply to the Group as the Group does did not have
any debt instruments with prepayment features
along with compensation for early termination. In
addition, as clarified in the amendments to the basis
for conclusions on HKFRS 9, the gain or loss arising
on modification of a financial liability that does not
result in derecognition (calculated by discounting
the change in contractual cash flows at the original
effective rate) is immediately recognised in profit
or loss. The Group’s current accounting policy is
consistent with this clarification and therefore the
adoption of the amendments did not have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
sets out amendments to HKAS 12 and HKAS 23.
Details of the amendments are as follows:

° HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Clarifies that
an entity recognises all income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity,
depending on where the entity recognised
the originating transaction or event that
generated the distributable profits giving
rise to the dividends. The amendments did
not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Clarifies that an
entity treats as part of general borrowings
any specific borrowing originally made to
develop a qualifying asset, and that is still
outstanding, when substantially all of the
activities necessary to prepare that asset for
its intended use or sale are complete. The
amendments did not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS

10 and HKAS 28
(2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business'

Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material’

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets
to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date
of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H

CHEMEHRERZEBMBEREE
Rl (&)

BB ERELERNEIR 2 IEFTEB R E
2 ERREEEINGS| o ZIEFTEE - HR
WRAXBHN—HEEANEHREEMS -
BELORE—ERAR—BELHERRE W
EAAERBEREAEEL 2N - — 1B
X UTEEESEELFENMERAR
B - ZIEEIMBRE ME2RERE XKL
BEAEETNMENNTE MRz &
ZREFTESMBARELD EBIEE G EH
HREBZERERIEEL 288 o ZIEET IR
NEHZER  ERMEIRREETRERAZE
MRS - WEWAKKRE BEER 2 EAth
WA o BEoN - ZISETIRBEFE S| + LAGLET(H AT
BREZAREREBEELMIRIE - W ATE
NARBEESFENR  UBFHAMEZ
—HEEREERG TBRERETELT
o REFBEHE —T _TF— A —BiH
WEMEER AN ZIEE] - AR ZISET RIS M E AR
BRERAEHSZEEENR Sk EME
1B AEERBEBBETEZEZERTN

B 488
FE o

=
N

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE K&

N

N
(181)
N4



ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial information are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
information on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

|

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
“EF-NF+-A=T-A

EXEHBERBE (&)

FERMEERE

W—EEE (78 BLERBEERTRE
ERN) FERETR @ HFEETFER
BEAR  MERFrEEN KOS BE
AlEeRRREEXREEEEMNER
BEERAABERLEKAMEPHRSE
Bt E WRERNEEETE @ FRIFXEED
BEELEARN BTN EMEEREEMAR T
EERDRA - BRIATNESERIRZEE
IBRSELBMAERE -

HEBRENEERDEBEE A KESHE
R e MR - FHEEREER - AatREKR
ERERARREMNEHESHHEEBEK
BEFERROFE2HATREXMRER
BE - REBBRREZREEEDEBATH
SR BN E A BRI a4 6k o

REREHR - BRR T AR RS 2 A
REOREB B S T FAENK AR EH
FHE o WA ERTR - Al fEtkE s
BoBAERNEE (BERI) RES
BERANEEZEENKE S BN [ D
REHHT THEDO RSB SEB
i 38 11 5 2 3 M 5t % B A FEROR (BB 1R 150
TREEENREE (MKRERTE &
)  ZEREBRRDGAELHHENE



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(1)
(ii)
(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

5%

9% to 19%
18% to 32%
9% to 24%

Buildings

Machines and equipment
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, machinery
and equipment under construction or installation, which
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Technological know-how

Purchased technological know-hows are stated at lost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

]
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 6 to 50 years
Office premises 2 years
Machinery, equipment and plant 2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAREHTHERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

HE (B=Z—hE—F—HE&ER) (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

(c)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019) (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EARETEREBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMERMEE (&)
Subsequent measurement H#E:=
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends CRBEENEBFTEIUANATHEE

on their classification as follows:

REHAASR 2 MEZE (BFTA)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently REEKAVNE SREEHBEAERA
measured using the effective interest method and are TEGTE WA RETE 2 EERIE
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in R BT SORER - Wam REEREREA
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or MR -

impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive AN BlEFTEARZE T ARMEH K
income (debt instruments) mzEEE (BEFILA)

For debt investments at fair value through other RIEAREBETEBEEEHT AL MEEK
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange HEBIREMmMS - FEWA -« INEEM KR
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are FEEBESEENEETRER - Wizl
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same HAATIRz eMEEMRMNARGE - K
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised BRARBEZHREMEEBEFER &
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised IFERE  REME2AREFERNEFTA
in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, REEZBFEHNGTAER

the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e.,
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

removed from the Group's

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low credit
risk simplification. At each reporting date, the Group
evaluates whether the debt investments are considered to
have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external
credit ratings of the debt investments. In addition, the
Group considers that there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other

payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
leases liabilities.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recggnised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired,
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

less bank overdrafts which are

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain environmental technology equipment for general
repairs of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by
the Group are recognised based on past experience of
the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

(a)

Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the industrial products.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Provision of consultancy and maintenance services

The Group provides consultancy and maintenance
services that are bundled together with the sale of
environmental technology equipment to customers.
The consultancy and maintenance services can
be obtained from other providers and do not
significantly customise or modify the environmental
technology equipment.

Contracts for bundled sales of environmental
technology equipment and consultancy and
maintenance services are comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to
transfer the environmental technology equipment
and provide consultancy and maintenance services
are capable of being distinct and separately
identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction price is
allocated based on the relative standalone selling
prices of the environmental technology equipment
and consultancy and maintenance services.

Revenue from provision of consultancy and
maintenance services is recognised over time. The
Group also determines that the customer benefits
from the consultancy and maintenance services
evenly throughout the year. Consequently, the
Group concludes that the best measure of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation over time is a time-based measure
and it recognises revenue on a straight-line basis
throughout the year.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Pension scheme

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are members of the state-sponsored pension scheme
operated by the Mainland China government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Investment income

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation
rate of 6.61% has been applied to the expenditure on the
individual assets (2018: 6.02%).

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in Note 12 to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends and special dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared, because the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends and special
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends and special
dividends are recognised immediately as liabilities when
they are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. The
functional currency of the Company is US dollars. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

|
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognizes the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that
significantly affect the determination of the amount and
timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

(i) Identifying performance obligations in a bundled
sale of environmental technology equipment and
consultancy and maintenance services

The Group provides consultancy and maintenance
services that are sold bundled together with the
sale of environmental technology equipment to
customers. The consultancy and maintenance
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) (continued)

The Group determined that both environmental
technology equipment and consultancy and
maintenance services are each capable of being
distinct. The Group also determined that the
promises to transfer the environmental technology
equipment and to provide consultancy and
maintenance services are distinct within the context
of the contract. The environmental technology
equipment and consultancy and maintenance
services are not inputs to a combined item in the
contract. The Group is not providing a significant
integration service because the presence of
the environmental technology equipment and
consultancy and maintenance services together
in the contract does not result in any additional or
combined functionality and neither the equipment
nor the consultancy and maintenance modifies or
customises the other. In addition, the environmental
technology equipment and consultancy and
maintenance services are not highly interdependent
or highly interrelated, because the Group would
be able to transfer the environmental technology
equipment even if the customer declined
consultancy and maintenance and would be able
to provide consultancy and maintenance services
in relation to equipment sold by other distributors.
Consequently, the Group has allocated a portion
of the transaction price to the environmental
technology equipment and the consultancy and
maintenance services based on relative standalone
selling prices.
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‘ Notes to Financial Statements
o . B ERIMEE

31 December 2019
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. SES:HERMG (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued) FE (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) KEHEFET U ZEH8 Kz ()
(i) Determining the timing of satisfaction of consultancy (i) T TE b ) S 38 A AR 755 Y iR 40 e P

and maintenance services
RNEBRAB R RERERG W=t
The Group concluded that revenue for consultancy R BEEANER  EAESARE

and maintenance services is to be recognised 0 T £ FE A £ [ AR A 3G o 52—

over time because the customer simultaneousl . S o \ . o
_ _ , y EREFENETAEEES AR
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the

a The fact that anoth it 4 not need HEEANER  E—FERARP
roup. The fact that another entity would not nee A -~

P / , FAR 58 B B 400 5 D 055 4 M R £ P A
to re-perform the consultancy and maintenance

, B B R PR (A R s
that the Group has provided to date demonstrates
that the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group’s performance
as it performs.
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The Group determined that the input method is
the best method in measuring the progress of the
consultancy and maintenance services because
there is a direct relationship between the Group’s
effort (i.e., labour hours incurred) and the transfer

_ _ B LR SRR AR o
of services to the customer. The Group recognises
revenue on the basis of the labour hours expended
relative to the total expected labour hours to
complete the services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

The Group has recognised deferred tax liabilities of
RMB12,144,000 (2018: RMB8,087,000) for portion of its
foreign-invested subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings.
Under the prevailing income tax law of the PRC and its
relevant regulations, dividends paid by PRC enterprises
out of profits earned after 31 December 2007 to non-PRC
tax resident investors are subject to PRC withholding tax of
10%. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. The Group in the past was charged
with withholding tax at a rate of 5% when those PRC
subsidiaries distributed profits to their holding companies
outside Mainland China. Therefore, the Group applied 5%
to provide for withholding taxes on retained profits to be
distributed (Note 27).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Management’s estimation is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with tax planning strategies (Note
27).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and prepayments and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and prepayments and other receivables.
The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables and prepayments and other receivables
is disclosed in Note 19 and Note 21 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Property, plant and equipment — recoverable amount

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, each
asset or cash-generating unit is evaluated every reporting
period to determine whether there are any indications of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an estimate of
recoverable amount is performed and an impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset or cash-generating group of assets is measured at
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use.

Fair value is determined as the amount that would be
obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties.

Value in use is generally determined as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows of those expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form
and its eventual disposal. Present values are determined
using a risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate appropriate to
the risks inherent in the asset. Future cash flow estimates
are based on expected production and sales volumes,
selling prices (considering current and historical prices,
price trends and related factors) and operating costs. This
policy requires management to make these estimates and
assumptions which are subject to risk and uncertainty;
hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances
will alter these projections, which may impact on the
recoverable amount of the assets. In such circumstances,
some or all of the carrying value of the assets may be
impaired and the impairment would be charged against
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Property, plant and equipment — estimated useful lives
and residual values

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, and it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore in
depreciation/amortisation expense in future periods.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has four (2018:
four) reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the dye and agricultural chemical intermediates
segment produces dye intermediate products for
the use in production of dye related products and
products for the use in the production of agricultural
chemicals;

(b) the pigment intermediates segment produces
pigment intermediate products for the use in the
production of pigments;

(c) the environmental technology consultancy service
segment engages in environmental protection; and

(d) the battery materials segment engages in the
manufacture and sale of battery materials.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated mainly based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, finance costs and
other unallocated expenses of the Company and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

The measurement of segment assets and liabilities is same
as total assets and total liabilities for the consolidated
statement of financial position, excluding unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities as these assets and
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to Financial Statements
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Dye and Environmental
agricultural technology
chemical Pigment consultancy Battery Total
intermediates  intermediates service materials segments
FHREE RREM
tERTER AT AR Eia AHAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue (Note 5) 28l (3Es)
Revenues from external customers RENDZP Az 1,509,631 263,188 37,003 8,435 1,818,347
Intersegment sales ABREE 3,337 = 5,369 = 8,706
Tote evenue e 1,512,968 263,188 12,462 8435 1,827,053
Reconciliation H%
Elimination of intersegment sales PHEHEHS (8,706)
Revenue from continuing operations REFELERH WG 1,818,347
Segment results A 743,363 48,121 4,697 (56,063) 740,118
Including; B
Interest income FSWA 229 115 - 6 350
Finance costs TR (20,980) (660) ) (148) (21,791)
Reconciliation 3
Interest income HlEHA 60
Finance costs HBRA (9,870)
Elimination of intersegment results ABRFEL S (2,989)
Corporate and ather unallocated expenses tEREMFARRS (17,680)
Profit before tax S Thegl 709,639
Segment assets ABEE 2,045,358 286,549 116,427 372,750 2,821,084
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment receivables ABEENGEL (868,477)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMAAREE 632,995
Elimination of inventories due to unrealised gains RAERNAMEFE (4,202)
Total assets BELE 2,581,400
Segment liabilities AREE 906,711 125,693 12,867 398,907 1,444,178
Reconciliation H%
Elimination of intersegment payables AERENRELH (868,477)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities PEREMANEEE 239,258
Total liabilties BfEEE 814,959
Other segment information EtABER
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss RERAERNFESE 11,091 7,428 - 35,530 54,049
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 47,818 15,345 4,817 5,333 73,313
Capital expenditure™ ERR 117,050 15,179 1,138 38,808 172,265
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BEARATBEAEDE -

plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIWER (&)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—\F+=-A=1+—HILFE

Dye and Environmental
agricultural technology
chemical Pigment consultancy Battery Total
intermediates intermediates senvice materials segments
MHREE BB i
k2nhRE PrTREE el e ABaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue (Note 5) AHE (WE5)
Revenues from exteral customers REJBEPEMG 1,212,082 262,479 38,315 3,006 1,515,882
Intersegment sales AHRHE 69,836 68,521 1315 - 139,672
Total revenue i 1281918 331,000 39,630 3,006 1,655,554
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment sales AEEHESH (139,672)
Revenue from continuing operations RERBEEEH s 1,515,882
Segment results APEE 332,926 43,522 (18,448) (11,145) 346,855
Including; B -
Interest income FSA 928 24 5 14 971
Finance costs HTEA (3,482) (1019) - (5) (4,506)
Reconciliation H%
Interest income HIEHA 28
Finance costs HBRA (18,279)
Elimination of intersegment restlts ABREELH (7,702)
Corporate and ather unallocated expenses CEREMFARRS (11,987)
Profit before tax bl 308,915
Segment assets AHEE 1,662,417 446,340 64,013 350,479 2,623,249
Reconciliation g
Elimination of intersegment receivables yorl i GOEEa (998,767)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMFIREE 988,065
Elimination of inventories due to unrealised gains RAZBEREMHHFE (3,396)
Total assets EEBE 2,509,151
Segment liabilities AREE 993327 237,010 13,756 307,085 157,178
Reconciliation g
Elimination of intersegment payables ABRERZELH (998,767)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities PEREMKIREE 616,855
Total liabilities BEAE 1,189,266
@ , . ;
Other segment information 2t HHER
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss RERNEANAERE 2421 8 (12) 3 2,420
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 45,852 14,320 4,669 334 65,175
Capital expenditure YUY 408,891 17,257 745 13,141 440,034
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hEF+ZA=1+—H

4. REIHEH (&)

Geographical information ih 38 & B

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KESZBEF WKz
2019 2018
—F-hE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTIT
Mainland China AR B K e 972,743 928,642
Indonesia ENE e 189,131 36,936
India ENfE 173,122 164,078
United States EH 144,833 94,429
Germany = 136,053 97,556
Brazil B 63,559 28,331
Spain Fisplisy 60,260 43,207
Taiwan, China R A & 26,662 70,436
Turkey +EHH 14,681 4,180
Japan H 7 12,178 17,240
Italy BAA 10,353 17,597
Korea EE[H 1,227 7,292
Other countries/regions HMBAR bl 13,545 5,958
1,818,347 1,515,882

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets are substantially located in
Mainland China.

B EERTDRERPRAEMLERS -
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

Information about major customers

In 2019, revenue of RMB260,738,000 was derived from
sales from the dye and agricultural chemical intermediates
segment to a single customer.

In 2018, revenue of RMB219,745,000 was derived from
sales from the dye and agricultural chemical intermediates
segment to another single customer.

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H

ReEsWER (&)

WEER (&)

TEEFEH

M=Z—NF - AR¥K260,738,0007T ) U
WK R R RBETMES B — %
BEPHHE °

RZZE—N\F - AR¥®219,745,0007T #) 1K
mREARANREELERTREEBYHE S —
BARPHHE o

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wi - HWA R KESE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WE AT
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREET T
Revenue from contracts with customers X8 HEFET 72 & AI89Y s 1,818,347 1,515,882

O
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Tsaker Chemical Group Limited & {t 2E£BHBR A

(continued)

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hEF+ZA=1+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wi - HtBARWKE (4F)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFFTILZ2EHH NG
Disaggregated revenue information (a) AW mEH
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE-NF+-A=+—HLEE
Dye and Environmental
agricultural technology
chemical Pigment consultancy Battery
intermediates intermediates service materials Total
FRRBE RREM
tERTHE ERTEE AR E g &t
Segments 23 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
Types of goods or services ~ E¥FRHEER
Sale of chemical intermediates &2 RHHER
and battery materials BiitH 1,509,631 263,188 - 8,435 1,781,254
Sale of environmental HERRRIT
technology equipment - - 33,079 - 33,079
Provision of consultancy and #2458 M B 4 IR K
maintenance services - - 4,014 - 4,014
Total revenue from contracts ~ RBEEF2A4H)
with customers eyt 1,509,631 263,188 37,093 8,435 1,818,347
Geographical markets BT
Mainland China B AR 753,662 173,553 37,093 8,435 972,743
Indonesia HER R 189,131 - - - 189,131
India g 113,505 59,617 - - 173,122
United States E3E 128,261 16,572 - - 144,833
Germany =6 135,761 292 - - 136,053
Brazil i 63,559 - - - 63,559
Spain AT 60,260 - - - 60,260
Taiwan, China hEGE 26,662 - - - 26,662
Turkey tEH 14,681 - - - 14,681
Japan KN - 12,178 - - 12,178
ltaly EAF 10,353 S - S 10,353
Korea 1] 1,227 - - - 1,227
Other countries/regions HEBR e 12,569 976 - - 13,545
Total revenue from contracts ~ REBEEFEILZA XA
with customers gt 1,509,631 263,188 37,093 8,435 1,818,347
Timing of revenue recognition Uk H 2R
Goods transferred at a point ~ RAEEREEE s EY)
in time 1,509,631 263,188 33,079 8,435 1,814,333
Services transferred over time  BERS &2 7 IRH - - 4,014 - 4,014
Total revenue from contracts ~ REEREFEV 2444
with customers ek 1,509,631 263,188 37,093 8,435 1,818,347
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(continued)

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements
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M ERMEE

31 December 2019

NE+-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& HhARWE (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEEFEFIT Y 2N (&)
Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) HERFK=ER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—Z—\&+A=+—HLEE
Dye and Environmental
agricultural technology
chemical Pigment  consultancy Battery
intermediates  intermediates service materials Total
ARREE i&f%ﬁ iy ‘
tERTEE ERTEE AR ERE A%
Segments D RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Types of goods or services ~ E¥FRHEER
Sale of chemical intermediates ~ $4& (L 2 QTR
and battery materials BiitH 212,082 262,479 = 3,006 1,477 567
Sale of environmental HERRRIT
technology equipment - - 33,294 - 383,294
Provision of consultancy and #2458 M B 4 IR K
maintenance services - - 5,021 - 5,021
Total revenue from contracts ~ RBEEF2A4H)
with customers eyt 1,212,082 262,479 38,315 3,006 1,515,882
Geographical markets HEHE
Mainland China B AR 696,320 191,001 38,315 3,006 928,642
Indonesia HERAE 36,936 - - - 36,936
India e 123,192 40,886 - - 164,078
United States E35] 82,254 12,175 = = 94,429
Germany (el 96,958 598 - - 97,556
Brazil il 28,331 - - - 28,331
Spain AT 43,207 - - - 43,207
Taiwan, China mEAE 70,436 - - - 70,436
Turkey tEH 4,180 - - - 4,180
Japan KN = 17,240 - = 17,240
ltaly EAF 17,597 - - - 17,597
Korea 45| 7,292 - - = 7,292
Other countries/regions HER R 5,379 579 - - 5,958
Total revenue from contracts REERFPEIZAHH
with customers lheay k] 212,082 262,479 38,315 3,006 1,515,882
Timing of revenue recognition U3 He 2B
Goods transferred at a point REGESLSES Y
in time 1,212,082 262,479 33,294 3,006 1,510,861
Services transferred over time  FERS 2 7 R7% - - 5,021 - 5,021
Total revenue from contracts ~ REEE PV 24 KIH)
with customers hEait] 1,212,082 262,479 38,315 3,006 1,515,882
/\ /\
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited & {25

Notes to Financial Statements

&

M ERMEE

31 December 2019
—hE+=ZA=1+—H

Wz - HWA R WS (&)

REREFITLZEHNNKE (&)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) HERFK=ER (&)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TR B 1 A 3 A B R AR A U mR
recognised in the current reporting period that were B BREERREHIE “’J’EF :
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBETTT
Revenue recognised that was s ARE BR A
included in contract EHAERN
liabilities at the beginning B RS
of the reporting period:
Sale of chemical intermediates SHEZERTPREE 2,696 4,485
Consultancy and maintenance R S
services AR 7 3,705 =
6,401 4,485
Performance obligations (b) EHEML

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of goods, including chemical intermediates,
battery materials and environmental technology
equipment

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the industrial products and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery,
except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

EARLQH

FRASERBRHE TN E B0
™

HERY (BBt EE &
MHRRRBAMRE)

BHBEEIRRXNIEEREBET
AT — R R #E30F90H E Hf -
BHEFE RN RERE AR
KN ©



REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)
Provision of consultancy and maintenance services

Revenue from provision of consultancy and
maintenance services is recognised over time and
on a straight-line basis throughout the year.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (partially

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIMEE

31 December 2019
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H

5. W& - EftlARWE (&)

REEEFEFIT Y 2N (&)
(b) EHEML (E)
TR H R BRI

TR A R BB M RIS P 1S UK 2 e 32 B
R - W EEMEFE LA EARERE

7
o ©

Rt-—A=+—H EETFHTE
MEME (B RED) XS SR

unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows: T
2019 2018
—ZT-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTIT
Amounts expected to be TERER B 2
recognised as revenue: SF
Within one year —FR 4,527 7,480
After one year —F U E 187 3,027
4,714 10,507
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‘ Notes to Financial Statements
§ 4 B ERIMEE

31 December 2019
N . —E-NF+ZA=+—H
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& HhARWE (&)

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEEFEFIT Y 2N (&)

(b)  Performance obligations (continued) (b) BHE (&)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to FEHR—FERR KR 2R E T
the remaining performance obligations which TRABENRZ ¢ EERRREH
are expected to be recognised as revenue after RR75AERE - R BB ERGEMFEA
one year relate to consultancy and maintenance ERK  BETHRTRARENMER
services, of which the performance obligations that MR 5 eBEAR —FRNERHK
are to be satisfied within two years. All the other 7 o

amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year.

Other income and gains Hg A R =

2019 2018
—E-NEF T )N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
Bank interest income RITH B UA 410 999

Dividend income from equity ?f?ﬂ%fﬁ?*%ﬂ%@@)

investments at FVOCI